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The board (the "Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) is pleased to
announce the annual results of Hao Tian International Construction
Investment Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2019 (the

“Year").

During the Year, the Group continues to engage primarily in rental
of construction machinery; trading of construction machinery, spare
parts, and construction materials; and provision of machinery
transportation services. Besides, the Group completed the
acquisition of Hao Tian International Financial Holdings Limited (£
KEIE € B iZR BB 2 A ), a company which provides financial
services including regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), insurance agency and money lending,
at a cost of HK$180 million on 13 December 2018.

For the construction machinery business, the economic
environment worldwide and local economy in Hong Kong are full of
uncertainties and challenges. Apart from internal issues and
external impacts, we are also facing other factors that increasingly
affect our industry. Although various infrastructure projects were
approved and commenced, new and subsequent public funding
have been approved in a much slower pace than those committed
in the previous year. Such delays in funding approvals caused
projects to lag behind the original schedules so contractors tend to
be more cautious when making investment decisions on

construction machinery.

For the financial services business, the Group is confident in the
prospects of development of the financial business markets in
Hong Kong and the Mainland China, and would like to increase the
presence of financial business market by either organic growth or
working with reputable partners. During the year, the Group has set
up the first fund with Riverwood Asset Management (Cayman)
Limited with a total assets under management (“AUM") of
USD40,000,000. This allows the Group to earn stable management
fee income and performance bonus, which was a new source of

income to the Group.

DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT
EERES

Ex((E5) (B2 ) MAEMERBERER
REKEARAR(ARADREKB AR (HRHEIA
SEDBE_Z-NF=ZRA=+—HIEFE(XF
CEDES: &

RAFE AEBEST2NEEZERMEE 25
B - ERTHMIREMHEE - URIRHE M ESR
RIETEZET - o AEEER T —/\F+=
A+=A1 8B TR KERRERERIERE
RAOm ZABREBEIEFLRBEGITEFR
HEHEHDZREEY FRAERHKEEANSE
BT

REEEMEB T E  2REERFERBEARET
BRFTHARRRRKE - AR EH LRI E
S RITEBHITREEAYENEMER - BE
ZEEZRBCDEMERRL  EREFARKES
ENEREFEEZ FRESCENTEEYURRA K
BEIR FRERTE - ABURERAE L Z AR E
REFREREER -

REMBRBEBIE  AEEBHEERAMESFTE
BHENERARTMEL  TERSERAANELR
FEBBRRITNEHAIE  HERESBERT S ZR
o MAFE A& E B IX ERiverwood Asset
Management (Cayman) Limited %3/ E ¢ + B EE
(B EE ) #1E 440,000,000 T ° th B FEARKE
SUARBIBEEREBWARKRIRIEA - DAEEZ
TR o

Annual Report Z£2§ 2018/19 5



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBFE &R ELEEBR AR

DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT
EERES

During the Year, the Group's revenue increased by approximately
6.4%, from approximately HK$165.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2018 (the “Previous Year”) to approximately HK$176.5
million for the Year. The increase was a result of commencement of
the business of provision of commodities, future, securities,
brokerage and financial services. Loss attributable to the owners of
the Company was approximately HK$6.5 million for the Year,
against the loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$12.5 million for the Previous Year. Gross profit
margin increased from approximately 8.1% for the Previous Year to

approximately 15.7% for the Year.

Though facing challenges in business operating environment, the
Group continues to invest in human resources and its rental fleet of
construction machinery, while proactively expanding its financial
services business by constantly exploring new investment
opportunities. With on-going investments by the Group, the Board
believes that the Group is in a more competitive position to seize

new opportunities in coming years.

Last but not least, the Board would like to express its sincere
gratitude to the management of the Group (the “Management”)
and all the staff for their hard work and dedication, as well as its
shareholders, business partners and other professional parties for
their support throughout the Year. The Group will continue to
explore a diversified business development model and enhance its
comprehensive strength to create satisfactory returns for our

investors.

Fok Chi Tak

Executive Director

10 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKET REVIEW

The economic environment worldwide and the local economy in
Hong Kong are full of uncertainties and challenges. Whilst various
infrastructure projects have been approved and have commenced,
the approval of new and subsequent public funding has been much
slower as compared to previous years. Such delays in funding
approvals have caused projects to lag behind their original
schedules causing contractors to be more cautious when making
investment decisions on construction machinery. Nevertheless, the
Board believes that the demand for construction machinery will
grow in the coming years after the launch of major projects such as
the Three-runway system at Chek Lap Kok Airport, Tseung Kwan O
— Lam Tin Tunnel, Central Kowloon Route, Kai Tak Development
etc. Thus, the Group has focused on upgrading the rental fleet by
bringing in brand new and environmentally friendly equipment,
which has ensured the continuous provision of high quality, reliable
and safe equipment to the construction market. Meanwhile, upon
completion of the HTIFH Acquisition (details of which are set out in
the paragraph headed “Acquisition of Hao Tian International
Financial Holdings” of this report) in December 2018, the Group
has completed a corporate restructuring and acquired a new line of
business in the financial services. The Board believes diversification
of business would broaden the source of income and will potentially
increase the Group's revenue and enhance the Group's financial

performance.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group was principally engaged in the construction machinery
business, serving primarily the construction sector in Hong Kong
and financial services. The Group's principal activities included (i)
rental of construction machinery, such as crawler cranes, aerial
platforms and foundation equipment, and provision of repair and
maintenance service; (ii) trading of new or used construction
machinery, spare parts and construction materials; (iii) provision of
machinery transportation services; and (iv) provision of
commodities, futures, securities and financial services and related

advisory services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWRE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Rental of construction machinery and provision of repair
and maintenance services

The Group offered crawler cranes of different sizes, other mobile
cranes, aerial platforms and foundation equipment in its rental
fleet. For crawler cranes, the mix in the rental fleet ranged from
2.9-tonne mini crawler cranes to 750-tonne massive crawler cranes.
The Group sourced these construction machinery mainly through
the manufacturers of construction machinery located in developed
countries in Western Europe and Northern Asia as well as traders of

used construction machinery around the world.

The Group has maintained over 200 units of construction machinery
in the rental fleet during the Year. Details of the construction
machinery carried by the Group which were available for the rental
operations are summarised as follows:

KO (&)

BEEMEERREHEERRERE

AEBETHERKRHSENRBREXNNES
P ERB B AR IES RINERE - 3E
mREME  HEEEANSEERENF298ER/
NESPHETSOMNERES B - ARBETEM
IR PIER M b ar B R MBS BELE R IA R 2
PR F MM E R IR R -

RARFE  AEENHEERKABB2005 2 EHK
oo AT A S EE T E RS AR ERMES
BT -

As at 31 March

R=BA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
Number Number
in fleet in fleet
BB A 28
Crawler cranes and other mobile cranes J7& 7 7 1 2 B Ath it &) 1 102 92
Aerial platforms FBETIES 85 84
Foundation equipment Hh E & A 37 43
224 219

In order to maintain a modern fleet of construction machinery with
a greater variety of models, the Group has been replacing portions
of its fleet of construction machinery from time to time. The Board
will continue to monitor the daily operations and review the
expansion plan of the rental fleet and the capital requirements of
the Group regularly. The Group may reschedule such expansion
plan according to the operation and needs, the preference of the
target customers and prevailing market conditions if necessary. The
Group may also revise the timing and financing arrangements for
the purchase of additional, and replacement of, existing
construction machinery if the market condition changes or other
factors deemed necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Trading of construction machinery, spare parts and
construction materials

The Group was also engaged in the trading of new construction
machinery, spare parts and construction materials as well as used
construction machinery. To accommodate the needs of different
customers, the Group offered a wide range of construction
machinery including crawler cranes with lifting capacity of up to 750
tonnes, aerial platforms and foundation equipment. The Group
entered into several dealership arrangements with construction
machinery manufacturers in Europe, Japan and Korea. To satisfy
customers’ needs, the Group also sold spare parts to customers for

maintenance purposes or upon request.
Transportation services

The transportation services included local container delivery,
construction site delivery and heavy machinery transport. According
to customers’ requests, the Group arranged and provided these
services with various transportation vehicles and equipment
including 44-tonne heavy load trucks, 8-tonne to 25-tonne crane

lorries, 20-feet to 40-feet trailers, and under 38-tonne trucks.

Provision of commodities, futures, securities and financial
services and related advisory services

Upon completion of HTIFH Acquisition, the Group holds (i) SFC
licences for conducting type 1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing
in futures contracts), type 4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities; (ii) membership of the Hong
Kong Confederation of Insurance Brokers (HKCIB) authorised to
offer general insurance and long-term (including linked long-term)
insurance; and (iii) a money lender licence, which allows the Group
to provide a wide range of financial services. The Group believes
that with the regional advantages of Hong Kong as an international
financial center, the provision of financial services will bring many
business opportunities and long-term stable income and steady
growth to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWRE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The total revenue increased by approximately HK$10.6 million, or
6.4%, from approximately HK$165.9 million for the Previous Year to
approximately HK$176.5 million for the Year. Such increase was
mainly attributable to the provision of commodities, futures,
securities and financial services upon completion of the HTIFH
Acquisition on 13 December 2018.

Rental of construction machinery and provision of repair
and maintenance services

The revenue from rental of construction machinery decreased by
approximately HK$11.8 million, or 10.0%, from approximately
HK$117.9 million for the Previous Year to approximately HK$106.1
million for the Year. The decrease was mainly due to the delay in
the commencement of several public projects and public related

projects.

Trading of construction machinery, spare parts and
construction materials

The revenue from trading of construction machinery, spare parts
and construction materials increased by approximately HK$8.0
million, or 17.1%, from approximately HK$46.8 million for the
Previous Year to approximately HK$54.8 million for the Year. The
increase was mainly due to the increased demand for replacement
with brand new and environmentally friendly construction

machinery.
Transportation services

The revenue from provision of transportation services increased by
approximately HK$0.3 million, or 25.0%, from approximately HK$1.2
million for the Previous Year to approximately HK$1.5 million for
the Year.

Provision of commodities, futures, securities and financial
services and related advisory services

After completion of the HTIFH Acquisition completed on 13
December 2018, the provision of commodities, futures, securities

and financial services contributed HK$14.1 million for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The gross profit increased by approximately HK$14.2 million, or
105.2%, from approximately HK$13.5 million for the Previous Year
to approximately HK$27.7 million for the Year, whereas the gross
profit margin increased from approximately 8.1% for the Previous
Year to approximately 15.7% for the Year. The increase in gross
profit and gross profit margin was mainly due to gross profit

generated from provision of money lending services.

Rental of construction machinery and provision of repair
and maintenance services

The gross profit of construction machinery rental services increased
by approximately HK$6.2 million, or 105.1%, from approximately
HK$5.9 million for the Previous Year to approximately HK$12.1
million for the Year. In addition, the gross profit margin of
construction machinery rental services increased from
approximately 5.0% for the Previous Year to approximately 11.4%
for the Year. The increase in gross profit margin of construction
machinery rental services was mainly due to the decrease in sub-

contracting fee, removal fee and truck costs.

Trading of construction machinery, spare parts and
construction materials

The gross profit of the trading of construction machinery, spare
parts and construction materials decreased by approximately
HK$6.2 million, or 82.7%, from approximately HK$7.5 million for the
Previous Year to approximately HK$1.3 million for the Year. In
addition, the gross profit margin of the trading of construction
machinery and parts decreased from approximately 15.9% for the
Previous Year to approximately 2.3% for the Year. The decrease in
gross profit margin for trading of construction machinery and parts
was mainly due to the decrease in trading of used machinery, which
normally has a higher gross profit margin than trading of new

machinery.

Provision of commodities, futures, securities and financial
services and related advisory services

The gross profit of financial services was approximately HK$14.1
million during the Year. This is a new business segment acquired by
the Group in December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWRE DM

OTHER INCOME OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

The other income and gains increased by approximately HK$12.7
million, or 104.1%, from approximately HK$12.2 million for the
Previous Year to approximately HK$24.9 million for the Year. The
increase in other income and gains was mainly attributable to the
increase in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss of approximately HK$17.9 million for the Year.
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$11.4
million, or 33.6%, from approximately HK$33.9 million for the
Previous Year to approximately HK$45.3 million for the Year. The
increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to the increase
in the professional fees incurred for the HTIFH Acquisition and the
administrative expenses incurred in the commodities, futures,

securities and financial services segment.
FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs increased by approximately HK$0.2 million, or
2.6%, from approximately HK$7.6 million for the Previous Year to
approximately HK$7.8 million for the Year.

NET LOSS
The Group's net loss for the Year was approximately HK$6.5 million

(2018: approximately HK$12.5 million) and the net loss margin was
approximately 3.7% (2018: approximately 7.6%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group had a solid financial position and continued to maintain
a strong and steady cash flow from operating activities. During the
Year, the Group's primary sources of funding included proceeds
from the rights issue of the ordinary shares in the Company (the
“Shares”), cash generated from operating activities and the credit

facilities provided by the Group's principal banks in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had bank balances and cash and
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$129.5 million (2018:
approximately HK$119.7 million) and approximately HK$4.7 million
(2018: approximately HK$4.6 million) respectively.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$1,080.3 million (2018: approximately HK$634.3 million), net
current assets of approximately HK$362.1 million (2018:
approximately HK$76.1 million) and net assets of approximately
HK$766.8 million (2018: approximately HK$353.0 million).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$574.0 million (2018: approximately
HK$229.0 million) and approximately HK$211.9 million (2018:
approximately HK$152.9 million) respectively. The Group's current
ratio increased to approximately 2.7 times as at 31 March 2019
(2018: approximately 1.5 times).

The Management believes that the Group’s current bank balances
and cash, together with the credit facilities available and the
expected cash flow from operations, will be sufficient to satisfy its

current operational requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREN WD

GEARING RATIO AND INDEBTEDNESS

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total debts (including
borrowings, obligations under finance leases, loan from a director,
amounts due to related companies and a director) with total equity
and it was approximately 32.9% as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
approximately 61.8%). The decrease was mainly due to the issue of

the Shares pursuant to the Rights Issue during the Year.

As at 31 March 2019, the borrowings, obligations under finance
leases, loan from a director, amounts due to related companies and
a director amounted to approximately HK$252.4 million (2018:
approximately HK$218.0 million) of which approximately HK$179.0
million were repayable on demand or within one year,
approximately HK$60.0 million were repayable in the second year;
approximately HK$13.4 million were repayable in the third to fifth

year from the end of the reporting period.
CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group's borrowings and obligations under
finance leases are secured by (1) leasehold land and building with
net carrying amount of approximately HK$0.6 million (2018:
approximately HK$0.6 million); (2) bank deposits of approximately
HK$4.7 million (2018: approximately HK$4.6 million) and (3)
machinery and motor vehicles with net carrying amount of
approximately HK$148.4 million (2018: approximately HK$154.4

million).
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The total capital expenditure incurred for the Year was
approximately HK$67.5 million (2018: approximately HK$66.8
million), which was mainly used in the purchase of machinery for the

rental business.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's pledged bank deposits and finance lease receivables
bore fixed interest rates. The Group's cash at bank balances bore
floating interest rates. The Group also had borrowings, obligations
under finance leases and loan from a director which bear interests
at fixed and floating interest rates. Exposure to interest rate risk
existed on those outstanding balances subject to floating interest
rate when there are unexpected adverse interest rate movements.
The Group's policy was to manage its interest rate risk, working
within an agreed framework, to ensure that there were no undue
exposures to significant interest rate movements and rates are

approximately fixed when necessary.

CURRENCY RISK

The Group mainly operated in Hong Kong with most of the
transactions denominated and settled in Hong Kong Dollars,
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and Euro ("EURQO"). The Group's exposure
to foreign currency risk primarily arose from certain financial
instruments including trade receivables, bank balances and cash,
trade payables, borrowings and obligation under finance leases
which were denominated in JPY, EURO, and United States Dollars.
The Group did not adopt any hedging strategy in the long run but
the management continuously monitored the foreign exchange risk
exposure and might enter into foreign exchange forward contracts
on a case-by-case basis. The Group has not used any hedging

contracts to engage in speculative activities.

CREDIT RISK AND LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the Year. The Group strived to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments
and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitored the Group's liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group's assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding

requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREN WD

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The capital commitments consisted primarily of acquisition of
subsidiaries and purchase of construction machinery for rental
purpose. As at 31 March 2019, the capital commitments contracted
but not provided for amounted to approximately HK$19.3 million
(2018: approximately HK$50 million cash and 125 million Shares be
issued by the Company).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group provided performance guarantees
amounting to approximately HK$10.2 million (2018: corporate
guarantees and performance guarantee amounting to
approximately HK$0.3 million and approximately HK$11.2 million
respectively) to the banks in respect of obligations under finance
leases and the Group's obligations under contracts with certain
third party customers. Under the guarantees, the Group would be
liable to make payments to the banks if the banks were unable to
recover the amounts under these finance leases from the third party
customers or the Group failed to perform the relevant obligations
to these customers. As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, no provision for
the Group's obligations under the guarantee contracts has been
made as the Directors of the Company considered that it was not
probable that the repayment of the finance lease obligations would
be in default, and it was therefore not probable that a claim will be

made against the Group.
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 April 2019, the Company completed the disposal of a
property holding company, which hold a parcel of land situated in
Tai Tong, Yuen Long, Hong Kong for an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$100,000,000 (the “Disposal”). It is expected
that the Group will record a net book gain of approximately
HK$31,121,000 from the Disposal. The actual amount of gain or loss
as a result of the Disposal to be recorded by the Company will be
subject to the review and final audit by the auditors of the

Company.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 140 staff (2018: 128). The total
staff costs incurred by the Group for the Year were approximately
HK$58.9 million (2018: approximately HK$60.5 million).

The Group generally recruited its employees from the open market
or by referral and entered into service contracts with its employees.
The Group offered attractive remuneration packages to the
employees. In addition to salaries, the employees would be entitled
to bonuses taking into account to the performance of the Company
and the relevant employees. The Group provided a defined
contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund as required under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) for the eligible employees.

The operation staff consisted of experienced machinery operators
and technicians. While such employees were highly demanded in
the market, the Group managed to maintain a relatively stable
workforce by continuous recruitment from the market or through
referrals. New employees were required to attend induction
courses to ensure that they were equipped with the necessary skills
and knowledge to perform their duties. In order to promote overall
efficiency, the Group also offered technical trainings to existing
employees on the operation of more advanced construction
machinery from time to time. Selected operation staff were
required to attend external trainings which were conducted by the
manufacturers of the construction machines to acquire up-to-date

technical skills and knowledge on the products of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.
FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend to
shareholders of the Company (”Shareholders”) for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWRE DM

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITY IN THE PAST
TWO YEARS

The Group carried out a number of equity fund raising activities in
the past two years. The details of equity fund raising activities and

the actual use of proceeds are as follows:

AEERBEMFETS
BEBFBIAFRAERBENT

RBEMFETHRAEETFE

HABRAEEES - ALK

Actual use of proceeds

Date of Approximate Intended use of as at the date of
announcement  Events net proceeds net proceeds this report
MEHRFEE RAHE B
AERH £ WA FE A RE HEERR FEREERRE
10 May 2017 Placing (the "Placing”) of Approximately The net proceeds of the Placing was previously The net proceeds of approximately
200,000,000 new Shares with an  HK$121.4 million intended to be used in real estate development and  HK$121.4 million has been utilised.
aggregate nominal value of investment properties and expansion opportunities  Of this, approximately HK$12.2
HK$2,000,000 by the Company in respect of the rental of construction machinery million was utilised as intended for
to no less than six placees who business in the People’s Republic of China (the general working capital purposes
were professional, institutional "PRC"), Singapore, Vietnam and the United Kingdom and approximately HK$109.2
or other investors who and by the Company; and for the general working capital - million was utilised in respect of
whose ultimate beneficial of the Company. In view of recent changes in the HTIFH Acquisition.
owners were independent of business development strategies and investment
and not connected with the opportunities, the Company changed the intended
Company, the connected use of proceeds to satisfy part of the cash
persons of the Company and consideration payable under the HTIFH Acquisition
their respective associates, at (details of which are set out in the paragraph headed
the placing price of HK$0.62 "Acquisition of Hao Tian International Financial
per placing Share (and net issue Holdings" of this report).
price being HK$0.605 per
placing Share). The closing
price of the Shares on 10 May
2017 was HK$0.66.
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EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITY IN THE PAST

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TWO YEARS (continued)

BEEEN WD

RBEMFETHREAREFTS (E)

Actual use of proceeds

Date of Approximate Intended use of as at the date of
announcement  Events net proceeds net proceeds this report
Frig s RE RARE B HH
AERH ES BARERERE HEERR FERRERAR
25 June 2018 On 25 June 2018, the Company ~ Approximately The net proceeds from the Rights Issue was intended  Of the net proceeds of
proposed a 1-for-2 rights issues  HK$178 million to be used in the following manner: approximately HK$178 million,
(the "Rights Issue”) to raise (i) approximately HK$142.4 million (representing 80%  approximately HK$160.2 million
proceeds pf approximately of the estimated net proceeds from the Rights Issue) has been utilised. Of this,
HK$180 million. For details of will be applied for money lending business or approximately HK$17.8 million was
the Rights Issue, please refer to relevant acquisition(s); utilised as intended for general
the paragraph headed “RIGHTS (ii) approximately HK$17.8 million (representing 10%  working capital purpose and
ISSUE" in this report. of the estimated net proceeds from the Rights Issue) ~ approximately HK$142.4 million
will be applied for financial services and securities  was utilised for money lending
business; and business. As of the date of this
(iii) the remaining proceeds (representing 10% of the  report, approximately HK$17.8
estimated net proceeds from the Rights Issue) will be  million of the proceeds has not yet
applied for general working capital. been utilised.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWRE DM

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Acquisition of Hao Tian International Financial Holdings

On 28 March 2018, Hao Tian Development Group Limited (“Hao
Tian Development”), which is the indirect controlling shareholder
of the Company, as seller, and Solution Pro Investments Limited
("Solution Pro"), which is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as buyer, entered into an agreement for the acquisition
(the “HTIFH Acquisition”) of the entire issued shares of Hao Tian
International Financial Holdings Limited (“Hao Tian International
Financial Holdings” or "HTIFH"). HTIFH holds several subsidiaries
engaged in providing financial services including Securities and
Futures Commission (“SFC") regulated activities, insurance agency
service and money lending. The HTIFH Acquisition constitutes a
major and connected transaction of the Company under the Listing

Rules.

On 25 June 2018, the parties entered into a supplemental
agreement to amend certain payment terms of the HTIFH
Acquisition. Originally, a portion of the HTIFH Acquisition
consideration of HK$50 million shall be settled by issue of Shares to
Hao Tian Development. Pursuant to the supplemental agreement,
if the Company would not be able to meet the public float
requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules following
issue of its Shares to Hao Tian Development under the HTIFH
Acquisition, the Company shall issue such a lower number of Shares
to the extent required to meet the public float requirement and the

shortfall shall be satisfied by way of cash.

On 24 July 2018, the parties entered into a second supplemental
agreement, pursuant to which (i) the HTIFH Acquisition
consideration shall be reduced from HK$200 million to HK$180
million and shall be wholly satisfied by cash; and (ii) the HTIFH
Acquisition shall be subject to an additional condition precedent
that the indebtedness between Hao Tian Development and HTIFH
shall first be offset against each other and the remaining
indebtedness owed by HTIFH to Hao Tian Development shall be
irrevocably waived and discharged. The HTIFH Acquisition has
been completed on 13 December 2018. Upon completion of the
HTIFH Acquisition, HTIFH became an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and the financial results, assets and
liabilities of HTIFH and its subsidiaries have been consolidated into

the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS (continued)

Acquisition of Hao Tian International Financial Holdings
(continued)

For details of the HTIFH Acquisition, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 28 March 2018, 25 June
2018, 24 July 2018 and 13 December 2018 and the circular of the
Company dated 10 August 2018.

Acquisition of machinery and HK$30 million financial
assistance from Mr. Tang

On 14 May 2018, K B Machinery Co. Limited (“KBM"), an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (the “"KWMT SPA") with Kai Wing Machinery
Trading Co. Ltd ("KWMT"), pursuant to which KWMT agreed to
sell, and KBM agreed to purchase, a used 750-ton crawler crane (the
“Machinery”) made in 2013 with Germany being the country of
origin at a total consideration of approximately HK$39.4 million (the
"KWMT Consideration”). The KWMT Consideration would be
funded (i) partly by the internal resources of the Group and (ii)
partly by the advance from a loan agreement dated 14 May 2018
entered into between Mr. Tang Yiu Chi, James (“Mr. Tang”) and
KBM for a principal amount not exceeding HK$30,000,000 (the
"KBM Loan Agreement”).

The Machinery is intended to be used for the Company'’s
cooperation with a renowned construction machinery provider in
the PRC in which a monthly rental income is expected for a
substantial period. With the surging demand for large-sized cranes,
the acquisition of the Machinery will (i) build up the brand name
and image of the Company and position the Company on a higher
level of regard in the construction market; and (i) open up more
opportunities of cooperation in the upcoming projects in Asia. In
addition, the Company expects that the acquisition of the
Machinery will enable the Group to attract more customers,

potentially leading to higher revenue and profit margins.

BEEEFNWR DN
EXRRE HEREARE(E)
O R L S AR ()

BHERBEBESRERKEBFENTE  F2HK
ARABMR T N\F=ZA-F+NB  ZF-N\F
ANAZT+HBA  —E-—AFLA-FTHAER=ZF-N\
FTZAT=ANRAEAREARFTEHBRL=Z-N
F\HA+TBERK -

BB R RE SR LN B EB30EEET

RZZB-—NFRATHEA ARFEEZERBA
AlE LA R AR ([E ) BB E 5
ABRAR (R )T BB (R E
Eipal) - BRUL - EEHERE B LS e R R =
BE— AR =—FLEENERTSOM-FEFD
He(Tztm])  BRENAF394E BB (R
WARB D) o RREHMA B () B D AREEH AL E
TR R (i) ZB o ABB IR ES St A ([ BB 5T 4 ) B2 i Eh Ak
FElvBHA—Z— \ERATHANEZ RS
EEAAR B 3R 155 7 1) T8 T 2N 2 BB 1N R 38 30,000,000 4 7T
BYZA TR o

ZEWBERAR AR EPEMNEZERRHEDS
& FRHUL R AT AR E R EASR A HBA - BEE
AT BT RKEIE - WERZEMS () R AR m
RS BB EERBEARREREN S EA
=& KRN ERANEBFHEAMESAE
BB o ool - AR ETEHIUIE X AR 1S A B A SR B O
SIEZER - tMEFKRARFIEE -

Annual Report F 3k 2018/19 21



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBFE &R ELEEBR AR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWRE DM

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS (continued)

Acquisition of machinery and HK$30 million financial
assistance from Mr. Tang (continued)

The KBM Loan Agreement constituted financial assistance provided
by Mr. Tang and was not secured by any assets of the Company.
The interest rate was 2% per annum and the final repayment date
shall be 24 months after the relevant drawdown date or such other
date as mutually agreed by Mr. Tang and KBM. Mr. Tang is an
executive Director and is thus a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The KBM Loan Agreement constitutes a
connected transaction which is fully exempted from announcement,
reporting and independent shareholders’ approval requirement
pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.

For details of the acquisition of machinery and the KBM Loan
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 14 May 2018.

Subscription of participating redeemable shares in
Riverwood China Growth Fund

On 5 March 2019, Glory Century Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, placed an order with Millennium Fund
Services (Asia) Limited (as administrator), pursuant to which Glory
Century Limited shall subscribe for 319,325.73 participating
redeemable shares in Riverwood China Growth Fund in the
subscription amount of approximately US$20,000,000, which was
satisfied by way of transferring 588,680,000 shares in China
Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited (“CSFG") to the Fund.
The transaction constituted a discloseable transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Completion of the subscription
took place on 6 March 2019 where upon 588,680,000 shares in
CSFG were transferred to the Fund. For details of the transaction,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 5 March
2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RIGHTS ISSUE

On 25 June 2018, the Company proposed the Rights Issue to raise
funds with gross proceeds of approximately HK$180 million. Under
the Rights Issue, a total of 1,200,000,000 new Shares of the
Company (the “Rights Share(s)”) will be issued and allotted. Hao
Tian Management (China) Limited ("HTM China”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Hao Tian Development and the controlling
shareholder of the Company, entered into (1) an irrevocable
undertaking to take up 750,000,000 Rights Shares, representing its
provisional allotment under the Rights Issue; and (2) an underwriting
agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”) to take up a maximum
of additional 450,000,000 Rights Shares if any of the qualifying
shareholders of the Company (other than HTM China) did not
subscribe for the Rights Shares under the Rights Issue.

As the Rights Issue will not increase the issued share capital of the
Company nor the market capitalisation of the Company by more
than 50%, the Rights Issue is not required to be conditional on
approval by the shareholders of the Company under Rule 7.09(6) of
the Listing Rules.

HTM China is the controlling shareholder of the Company and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Underwriting Agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the taking up of entitlement to the
Rights Issue by HTM China as a qualifying shareholder and
subscription for the Rights Shares in excess of its entitlement under
the Rights Issue (if applicable) are exempt from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the underwriting of the Rights Issue
by HTM China as the underwriter contemplated under the
Underwriting Agreement is exempt from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules provided that
there is an arrangement for the qualifying shareholders to apply for
the excess Rights Shares in compliance with Rule 7.21(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFNWRE DM

RIGHTS ISSUE (continued)

On 2 August 2018, all conditions precedent to the Underwriting
Agreement were fulfilled and the Rights Issue was completed. The
gross proceeds raised from the Rights Issue are approximately
HK$180,000,000 before expenses. Immediately following the
completion of the Rights Issue, the total number of the Company'’s
Shares in issue was enlarged from 2,400,000,000 to 3,600,000,000
and HTM China's interests in the Company increased from 62.5% to
64.79% after taking up the Rights Shares under its provisional
allotment in accordance with the irrevocable undertaking and the

Underwriting Agreement.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 25 June 2018, 5 July 2018, and 8 August 2018 and the
prospectus for the Rights Issue dated 17 July 2018, respectively.

SIGNIFICANT LITIGATION

In 2012, a customer commenced legal proceedings against Chim
Kee Machinery Co., Ltd. ("CKM"), a subsidiary of the Company, for
alleged breach of a rental contract. The customer claimed for
overall damages of more than HK$100 million while the disputed
sum claimed by CKM against the customer was approximately
HK$17.5 million together with other unascertained damages. CKM
obtained a judgment in favour of CKM handed down by the Court
of Final Appeal in July 2017 and the customer was ordered to settle
the unpaid hire of HK$8.9 million plus interest and part of the costs
of the legal proceedings. As of the date of this report, CKM has
received an aggregate amount of HK$14.4 million representing the
unpaid hire rental plus interest of HK$12.0 million and part of the
costs of the legal proceedings of HK$2.4 million.

During the Year, CKM also settled another claim for loss and
damage of more than HK$27 million with the same customer. The
customer discontinued its claims and paid the costs incurred by
CKM in the amount of HK$150,000.

Save as disclosed above, no member of the Group was engaged in
any litigation, arbitration or claim of material importance, and no
litigation, arbitration or claim of material importance was known to
the Directors to be pending or threatened against any member of

the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

The Group remains confident about its existing businesses in Hong
Kong including rental of construction machinery, trading of
construction machinery, spare parts and construction materials, and
provision of machinery transportation services. In addition, the
Group intends to explore prospective expansion opportunities in
respect of the rental of construction machinery business in the PRC,
Singapore, Vietnam and the United Kingdom. For the financial
services business, the Group is committed to providing professional
and quality financial services to its customers, actively exploring the
markets in Hong Kong and China, and integrating the economic
development trends and strategic deployments of the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (“"Greater Bay Area”) to
achieve diversified business development.

It is our intention to increase our presence in the financial market in
Hong Kong and Mainland China by either organic growth or

working with reputable partners.

We started the first fund with Riverwood Asset Management
(Cayman) Limited with a total assets under management (“"AUM”")
of USD40,000,000 during the year. It combined the strength of
Atlantis Investment Management Limited and the Company to tap
the opportunities arising from the new support policies for The
Greater Bay Area announced on 18 Feb. 2019. We have confidence
to grow the AUM further to USD 100,000,000 in FY2020, in which the
fee income will contribute to our asset management business in
FY2020. In the future, we will set up different kind of funds in
different asset class ranging from equities, fixed income, initial
public offering, property and project financing, etc. We strive for
the success of our client’s investments by creating tailored-made
solutions for clients through our expertise of investment

capabilities.

The Group will also set up a new business in FY2020, that is, a
family office business, to serve wealthy families, mainly from
Mainland China. We see a strong demand to have offshore asset
allocation to HKD or USD assets. This will create market
opportunities for our new business to serve high net worth wealthy

families.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREN WD

PROSPECTS (continued)

During the Year, we acquired 35% of an asset management fund
capitalizing on economic development and resources in Yan'an, the
PRC with objectives to promote innovative industrial integrations
and provide high quality investment services to the country (the
“Yanan Asset Fund”).

development fund approved by the National Development and

Yanan Asset Fund is a state-level

Reform Commission, which mainly invests in establishing sub-funds
for projects in relation to energy and chemical engineering, clean
energy, construction of infrastructure, green energy, patriotic
tourism and industrial poverty alleviation projects in Yan’an. In
FY2020, we will work with local partners in Yan'an, Shaanxi Province

of PRC, to develop the private equity businesses.

We will continue to look for merger and acquisition opportunities in
Hong Kong, mainland China and South East Asia that may
strengthen our position in the area of financial services. We are also
preparing an innovative fin-tech platform that will better serve our

customers in a more efficient way.

We are excited what will happen in FY2020 and will work diligently

with the team to create value for shareholders.
In view of the above, there are positive prospects for the Group

and it is expected that the business and revenue will continue to

grow steadily in the foreseeable future.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and the Senior
Management of the Group as at the date of this report are as

follows:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fok Chi Tak (E&E), aged 43, was appointed as an executive
director on 28 February 2017. Mr. Fok holds a master degree in
Business Administration from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Fok
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Fok is also a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Fok currently serves as an
executive director of Hao Tian Development Group Limited (Stock
code: 474), the controlling shareholder of the Company whose

shares is listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James (E3¥8%&), aged 51, was appointed as an
executive director on 24 September 2014. Mr. Tang is responsible
for the overall strategic management and development of the
Group's business operations, marketing and business development
and finance and administration. Mr. Tang was appointed as the
director of Chim Kee Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, in June 1989 and he took over the leadership of
the Group in May 1994. Mr. Tang has over 25 years of experience in
the rental and trading of construction machines. Mr. Tang obtained
a Bachelor of Science degree in aerospace engineering from the
Syracuse University and has been serving the Group since his

graduation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEEEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, JP, (Australia) (B{7& 5), aged 50, was appointed
as an executive director on 28 February 2017. Dr. Ou holds a Doctor
of Philosophy degree in Civil & Resource Engineering from The
University of Western Australia, Australia. Dr. Ou also holds two
Bachelor of Engineering degrees in Engineering Management &
Structural Engineering respectively. Dr. Ou has over 25 years of
professional engineering and management experience in civil and
industrial engineering areas both in Australia and China, including
residential and commercial high-rise buildings as well as projects in
oil & gas, mining and infrastructure industries. Dr. Ou had been a
senior staff member in the world’s leading energy & resource firms
including Kellogg Brown & Root (formerly known as KBR
Halliburton), WorleyParsons Pty Ltd., as well as Sedgman Ltd.,
which is specialised in coal processing and handling plants. Dr. Ou
participated in a number of key energy and resource projects
around the world such as acting as the Lead Civil and Structural
Engineer for BHP Billiton RGPé Jimblebar project; Rio Tinto iron
ore Dove Siding expansion project; Chevron Wheatstone Domgas
LNG Pipeline project; Yemen LNG Project (in the Republic of
Yemen) and Western Australia Dampier to Bunbury Natural Gas
Pipeline (Stage 5B) project, etc. Dr. Ou was also an officer at
Western Australia government agency from 2003 to 2006. In
addition, Dr. Ou has extensive experience and network in China.
He was the general manager and the chief engineer of Fujian
Liming Construction Company (f&&% &2 T A A]) and
deputy general manager of Fuzhou Henli Real Estate Development
Pty Ltd (&= 2= EE R AR 2 ) from 1993 to 1997. He was a
guest professor for Inner Mongolia University (A5 & A£2) and
Inner Mongolia University of Science & Technology (AE & EHE A
£2) in China. Currently, Dr. Ou is an independent non-executive director of
Rey Resources Limited (a company listed on ASX) and an executive
director of Hao Tian Development Group Limited (stock code: 474),
which is a company listed on the main board of the Stock

Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua (&%), aged 47, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 28 February 2017. Mr. Lee
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Lee has extensive experience in the fields
of auditing, accounting and finance. Mr. Lee currently serves as an
independent non-executive director of China Fortune Investments
(Holding) Limited (Stock code: 8116), Code Agriculture (Holdings)
Limited (Stock code: 8153) and Cornerstone Financial Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 8112) respectively, whose shares are listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee currently also serves as an
independent non-executive director of Hao Tian Development
Group Limited (Stock code: 474), Up Energy Development Group
Limited (Stock code: 307) and Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (Stock code:
1353), and an executive director of China Healthcare Enterprise
Group Limited (Stock code: 1143), whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee was also an
independent non-executive director of Teamway International
Group Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1239) from March 2015 to
August 2017, company is listed on the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (ZE#83E), aged 60, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 28 February 2017. Mr. Mak graduated
from the China University of Political Science and Law with a
Bachelor of Law degree in 1998. Mr. Mak is a legal executive of C.
K. Mok & Co., a firm of solicitors in Hong Kong. Mr. Mak has been
working in the legal industry for over 30 years. Mr. Mak currently
serves as an independent non-executive director of Talent Property
Group Limited (Stock code: 760), Up Energy Development Group
Limited (Stock code: 307) and Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (Stock code:
1353), whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock

Exchange.

Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot (Z&3#), aged 42, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 17 March 2017. Mr. Li is the
executive director of First Shanghai Securities Limited (“First
Shanghai”). Prior to joining First Shanghai, he was the managing
director of South China Financial Holdings Limited (stock code:
619), whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Li is a
chartered wealth manager of the Chartered Wealth Manager
Institute and the director of the Hong Kong Association of Online
Brokers. Mr. Li has held various senior positions including director
of corporate development and vice president of corporate planning
and development in financial institutes over his 15 years of
experience in the financial industry. Mr. Li has obtained a Bachelor
of Arts Degree at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University and has
obtained the Postgraduate Certificate in Business Administration

from University of Leicester in England.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Gao Zhangpeng (R ZEME), aged 40, was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer in March 2019. Mr. Gao graduated from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology in Wuhan, the People’s Republic of
China with a Bachelor's Degree in International Finance. He also obtained a
Degree of Doctor of Philosophy in Economics from Nanyang Technological
University in Singapore under full scholarship. Mr. Gao has extensive
experience in general corporate management, international banking,
finance and investment management gained from intemnational banks in
Singapore and Hong Kong. He worked in Malayan Banking Berhad, Hong
Kong branch. As part of the senior management team, he was appointed
as the manager of the financial institution under the Banking Ordinance,
playing a pivotal role in ensuring the financial soundness, efficient operation,
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. He is committed to
society and also serves as the Chairman of Wuhan Chamber of Commerce

(Singapore).
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping (PREEY), was appointed as a company secretary
on 1 February 2019. Ms. Chan is a solicitor qualified to practise in
Hong Kong and a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong. She is
also a consultant of a law firm in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan has many
years of experience in advising on corporate finance, mergers and
acquisitions, corporate governance, regulatory and compliance
matters. Prior to joining the Company, she was the company
secretary and general counsel of China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial
Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 412). Ms. Chan has a
bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in laws from
the University of Hong Kong. She also has a master of corporate

finance degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company and the Board are devoted to achieving and
maintaining high standard of corporate governance as the Board
believes that effective corporate governance practices are
fundamental in enhancing the shareholder value and safeguarding
the interests of the Shareholders and other stakeholders.
Accordingly, the Company has adopted sound corporate
governance principles that emphasise a quality Board, effective
internal control, stringent disclosure practices and transparency and
accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company has fully complied with the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except for the deviations from the
CG Code as described below.

(i) Under CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual in order to ensure that
there is clear division of responsibilities between the chairman
of the Board and the chief executive of the Company. The
Company has not appointed the chairman and the Board
provides leadership for the Company. Having considered the
business operation of the Group at the material time, it is
believed that the Board, which consists of experienced
professionals, can function effectively as a whole, while the
Executive Directors along with other members of senior
management of the Company are effective in overseeing the
day-to-day management of the Group under the strong
corporate governance structure in place.

(i)  The Nomination Committee was chaired by an executive
Director instead of an independent non-executive Director
because the Board considered that an executive Director
involved in the daily operations of the Company may be in a
better position to review the composition of the Board so as
to complement the Group's corporate strategy.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct of
the Company regarding Directors’ transactions of the listed
securities of the Company. The Company has made specific enquiry
to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that they had
complied with the Model Code and its code of conduct during the
Year.

The Group commits to continuously improve its corporate

governance practices by periodic review to ensure that the Group
continues to meet the requirements of the CG Code.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
Role and function

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions, oversees
the operations and monitors the financial performance of the
Group. The Management is delegated with power and authority by
the Board for the day-to-day management and operations of the
Group. The Management is accountable to the Board for the
Company's overall operation.

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership and
control of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group's
affairs. The Board focuses on formulating the Group's overall
strategies, approving the annual development plan and budget;
monitoring financial and operating performance; reviewing the
effectiveness of the internal control system and supervising and
managing management'’s performance.

Regarding the Group's corporate governance, during the Year, the
Board has, in accordance with the terms of reference, performed
the following duties:

o determining and reviewing the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group;

o reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o reviewing and monitoring the Group's policies and practices
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to the Directors and employees; and

J reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this corporate governance report.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Group to the Management.
The delegated functions were reviewed by the Board periodically
to ensure they remained appropriate to the needs of the Group.
The Board gave clear directions to the Management as to the
matters that must be approved by the Board before decisions are
made on behalf of the Group by the Management.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

(continued)

Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises three executive HRAREBHH SRR -LNTEER =2

ESSHRRESEER(E)

R

Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. VIEBMITES ©

Membership of Board Committee(s)
ExZEgCHE

Executive Directors:
HITES:

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P.
Bl xFet
Mr. Fok Chi Tak
EEERE

Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James
BRE et

Independent Non-executive Directors:

BIUFHITES :
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua
RS A

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong
BiRERE

Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot
FEBEE
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Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEZEeXE8

Chairman of the Nomination Committee
RAEZEEERE

Chairman of the Audit Committee
BEREZEEERE

Member of the Nomination Committee
REEEGKE

Member of the Remuneration Committee

FHEZEEKE

Member of the Audit Committee

BERLZER®KE

Member of the Nomination Committee
REEBEGKE

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

TMEELER

Member of the Audit Committee
EZEEGKE

Member of the Nomination Committee
REEZEEKE

Member of the Remuneration Committee

FHZEEKE
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Composition (continued)

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report, there was
no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship

among the members of the Board.
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has complied with rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules. Throughout the Year, there were at least three
independent non-executive Directors on the Board and the number
of independent non-executive Directors represents more than one-
third of the Board. As such, there existed a strong independent
element in the Board, which could effectively exercise independent
judgement. The Company has also complied with rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules which stipulates that one of the independent non-
executive Directors must possess appropriate professional
qualification or accounting or related financial management
expertise. In compliance with the CG Code, the independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified as such in all corporate

communications that disclose the names of the Directors.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Group considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent under the
Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each executive Director has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years unless terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other, and is subject to termination provisions therein and
provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in the
Memorandum and the Articles. Each independent non-executive
Director had entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years which will continue thereafter.
During the tenure, the appointment may be terminated by either

party giving the other not less than three months’ notice in writing.

Pursuant to paragraph A.4.2 of the Code Provisions, all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by
Shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment. By
virtue of Article 112 of the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”), the Board shall have the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an additional
Director. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible

for re-election.

At each annual general meeting, at least one-third of the Directors
for the time being will retire from office by rotation. However, if the
number of Directors is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third shall be the number of
retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire in each year will be
those who have been longest in the office since their last re-
election or appointment but as between persons who become or
were last re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire will
(unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by

lot.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Supply of and access to information

All Board members have separate and independent access to the
Company’s management to fulfill their duties, and upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice under
appropriate circumstances and at the Company’s expenses. All
Directors also have access to the company secretary of the
Company who is responsible for ensuring that the Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.
Board meetings are structured so as to encourage open discussion,
frank debate and active participation by Directors in meetings. The
Company provides the Board with such information and
explanations as are necessary to enable Directors to make an
informed assessment of the financial and other information put
before the Board. Queries raised by Directors are answered fully
and promptly. Meeting agenda accompanied by relevant Board/
committee papers are distributed to the Directors/committee
members with reasonable notice in advance of a Board/committee
meeting. Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board
committees, which recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board and decisions reached thereat, including
any concerns raised or dissenting views expressed by any Director,
are kept by the company secretary of the Company and open for

inspection by the Directors.
Liability insurance for the Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities in respect of any legal action which may be taken against
the Directors arising of its corporate activities. The insurance

coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
Directors’ continuing professional development program

All Directors confirmed that they had complied with code provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code during the Year. All Directors had
participated in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company has arranged
for, and provided fund for, training in the form of in-house training
seminars or other appropriate courses during the Year and relevant

training materials have been distributed to all the Directors.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Directors’ continuing professional development program
(continued)

The Board meets regularly and, in addition to regular meetings, it
meets as and when warranted by particular circumstances. During
the Year, the Directors’ attendance of the Board/committees

meetings is set out as follows:

BEESHRRESEER(E)
EEHAEXRRRTA0E)

EESTHMAREE RO TREFRK
REFREE NAFE BERHEEFE £8
2 FEREIIT

i ==
A
=
B

IHE> )454 b

Attendance/Number of meetings

HEERAY BIERNY
Executive Audit  Nomination Remuneration General

Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee meeting

EZe UNZRe EBHZRE® REZEE®  HMzEe e N1
Total number of meetings BTERANY 27 0 3 2 2 3
Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James HREtE 2621 00  NATEA  NATER  NATER 3/3
Dr. Zhiliang Ou BERET 21121 00  NATER N/A TNE 2/2 33
Mr. Fok Chi Tak ity 26127 00  NATER 22 NIATER 33
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTES:
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua FRERE 2321 NATER 33 22 22 33
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong BRREAE 22121 NATER 33 2/2 2/2 33
Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot FRREE 221 NATER 33 22 202 33
BOARD COMMITTEES EEZEE

The Board has established (i) Audit Committee, (i) Remuneration
Committee, and (iii) Nomination Committee with defined terms of
reference. The terms of reference of each of the Board committees,
which explain their respective roles and the authority delegated to
them by the Board, are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice and
other assistance under appropriate circumstances, at the

Company's expense.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 23 October
2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraphs
C.3 of the CG Code. During the Year and up to the date of this
report, the Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua, Mr. Mak Yiu
Tong and Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot. Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are, among other things, to review and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the
Group. It also acts as an important link between the Board and the
Company'’s auditors in matters within the scope of the group audit.

Meetings shall be held at least twice a year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee during
the Year and up to the date of this report included:

(@) reviewing the audited accounts and final results
announcement for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the
interim report and the interim results announcement for the
six months ended 30 September 2018;

(b)  reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and ensured compliance with the relevant
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other statutory

requirements;

(c) reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems; and

(d) meeting with the auditors to go through any significant audit
issues or key findings noted during the audit of the Group's
final results for the year ended 31 March 2019.

All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been addressed by
the Management. The work and findings of the Audit Committee
have been reported to the Board. During the Year, no issues
brought to the attention of the Management and the Board were

of significant importance to require disclosure in this annual report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23
October 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph B.1 of the CG Code. During the Year and up to the date
of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises four
members, namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou, Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua, Mr.
Mak Yiu Tong and Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot. Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are, amongst other things,
to make recommendations to the Board on the terms of
remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation payable
to the Directors and senior management and on the Group's policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management. No individual Director was allowed to involve in

deciding his own remuneration.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration Committee
during the Year included:

(@) making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management

remuneration;
(b)  assessing performance of executive directors;

(c) reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board'’s corporate goals and

objectives;

(d)  making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior

management;

(e)  making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration

of non-executive Directors;
()  considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions

elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries; and

(9) ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is involved

in deciding his own remuneration.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remunerations are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and
the results of the Group. In addition, the Directors’ remuneration is
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee of the Company
annually. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9

of the consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the Year, the remuneration of senior management (whose
biographies are set out in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report), other

than the Directors, is listed as below by band:
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HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$1,000,000 and below

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid employees required to be disclosed under Appendix
16 of the Listing Rules have been set out in note 9 to the

consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 23
October 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph A.5 of the CG Code. During the Year and up to the date
of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises four members,
namely Mr. Fok Chi Tak, Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua, Mr. Mak Yiu Tong
and Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot. Mr. Fok Chi Tak is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee is mainly
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on

appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee
during the Year included determining the policy for the nomination
of the Directors, covering the nomination procedures and the
process and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship during the Year.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of candidates
from Board members for its consideration. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not
nominated by Board members. The factors in assessing the
suitability of a proposed candidate for director include:

o business experience relevant and beneficial to the Company,
Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, knowledge,
professional experience and skills

o character and integrity

J accomplishments in personal careers

o independence

o willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a

Board member,

and such other perspectives appropriate to the Company's
business. The Nomination Committee shall make recommendations
for the Board's consideration and approval.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy. A summary of
such board diversity policy, the measureable objectives set for
implementing such board diversity policy, and the progress of
achieving those objectives are set out below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board's composition, the diversity of the Board has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All Board appointments will be
based on merit, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continued)
Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
potential contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. The Board's composition will be disclosed in the corporate

governance report annually in accordance with the Listing Rules.
Monitoring

The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring
achievement of the measureable objectives as set out in the board

diversity policy.
Diversity of the Board

The existing board members are well experienced in the
construction industry, investment and finance businesses. Some of
them are professionals in project management, finance, accounting

and legal with extensive experience.

In view of the present scale and complexities of the Group's
operations and the nature of the risks and challenges it faces, the
Nomination Committee considers the Company has achieved a
right balance of skills, experience, knowledge and diversity among

the existing Board members.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The Board would

consider, inter alia, the following factors before declaring or

recommending dividend to the shareholders:

the Company'’s actual and expected financial performance;

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company;

the level of the Company’s debts to equity ratio, return on

equity and the relevant financial covenants;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be

imposed by the Company’s contracting parties;

the Company'’s expected working capital requirements and

future expansion plans;

general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Company's business and other internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business or financial performance

and position of the Company; and

any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

Any payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with

applicable laws and regulations including the laws of the Cayman

Islands and the Company's Articles of Association.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy from time to

time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be paid in

any particular amount for any given period.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group in accordance with
statutory requirements and accounting standards. The Directors
also acknowledge their responsibilities to ensure that the financial
statements for the Group are published in a timely manner. The
Management has provided the Board with monthly updates and
sufficient information for the Board to develop and maintain a
balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects. The Directors consider that
the financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the
generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong, which
reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and
reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the Board and
management with an appropriate consideration to materiality. The
Directors, having made appropriate enquires, confirm that they are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company's

ability to continue as a going concern.

The accounting systems and internal control of the Group are
designed to prevent any misappropriation of the Group's assets,
any unauthorised transactions as well as to ensure the accuracy of
the accounting records and the true and fairness of the financial

statements.

The Board also acknowledges its responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the Company'’s
annual and interim reports, other announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and reports
to the regulators as well as to information required to be disclosed

pursuant to statutory requirements.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in

the Independent Auditor's Report contained in this annual report.
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TEERRE

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged BDO Limited as its external auditor for the
year ended 31 March 2019. The Audit Committee has been notified
of the nature and the service charges of non- audit services for the
agreed upon procedures in connection with annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 March 2019 and considered
that these non-audit services have no adverse effect on the
independence of the auditor. There was no disagreement between
the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditor. Details of the fees

paid/payable to BDO Limited during the Year are as follows:
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HK$

BT

Audit services EA% AR TS 700,000
Non-audit services IEEZ RS T
700,000

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control and risk management system, which is
designed to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement of management and financial information
and records or against financial losses or fraud. The Group has in
place an effective internal control system which encompasses
sound control environment, appropriate segregation of duties, well
defined policies and procedures, close monitoring and is reviewed

and enhanced by the Management at regular intervals.
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TEERHRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS R R AR (48)

(continued)

The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good AEBEROHEFTAIETRITEEE AT R R ASLE
corporate governance practice and internal control system. The 4| - ARABIEHE —EERB B S AR SFR
Company has in place an integrated framework of internal control 7845 [ W EFEEIE AR B IR — BARZEHE | FrEREIZ

which is consistent with the principles outlined in the “Internal  #R& AEPESIEAEZR - BT

Control and Risk Management — A Basic Framework” issued by

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as

illustrated below:

Monitoring

B

Information and Communication

Control Activities

EEES

Risk Assessment

[ B 5F A

Control Environment
EEIRIRIE

Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance
FERLEZGIE o KRB
Internal audits performed by internal audit department

R BRP X EBFTHE 1T BT

Information in sufficient detail is provided to the appropriate person timely
LEREEATRERSHRTZER

Channels of communication across the Group and with customers, suppliers
and external parties

RUNEBAMLARETS - HEBEEINN LT ZBERE

Channels of communication for people to report any suspected improprieties
RIUAMBRREMARTIETRIBBERE

Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out
FIE A ERATERIES ZBR KERF

Control activities include performance review, segregation of duties,
authorization, physical count, access control, documentation and records, etc.

ERRHEAREMN  BEDT - X  BYRE - HEEG - FE R

=

=F
Identification, evaluation and assessment of the key risk factors affecting the
achievement of the Company’s objectives are performed regularly

EHER - FELFETEERA QR BEZIERREER

Undertake proper actions to manage the risks so identified

A THAE BB 2 AR

Channels to communicate the Company’s commitment to integrity and high
ethical standards to the staff are established

RURBAE TEEARRAHNEFAERSBREE

Organizational chart and limits of authority are set and communicated to staff
concerned

HEIL AR B TEEQRREE MER

Reporting lines in accordance with organizational chart and line of authority
are set
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TEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

The internal audit department is responsible for conducting
independent reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control and risk management system, reporting
regularly the results to the Board through the Audit Committee and
making recommendations to the relevant department management
for necessary actions.

During the reporting period, the internal audit department had
conducted reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control
system covering all material factors related to financial, operational,
compliance controls, various functions for risk management and
physical and information security. Internal control reports
containing its findings and results were reported to the Audit
Committee during the Audit Committee meetings and had been
delivered to all Directors for review.

The Audit Committee had reported during the Audit Committee
meetings the key findings identified by the Company’s external
auditors in respect of the Group's internal controls and discussed
findings and actions or measures taken in addressing those
findings. The Company considers the internal control systems and
risk management is effective during the year under review. No
material issues on the Group's internal control system have been
identified by the Group's internal audit department and the
Company's external auditors during the reporting period which
required significant rectification measures.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping, was appointed as a company secretary on 1
February 2019. Ms. Chan is a solicitor qualified to practise the laws
of Hong Kong and a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong.
She is also a consultant of a law firm in Hong Kong. Ms. Chan has
many years of experience in advising on corporate finance, mergers
and acquisitions, corporate governance, regulatory and compliance
matters. Prior to joining the Company, she was the company
secretary and general counsel of China Shandong Hi-Speed
Financial Group Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 412). Ms. Chan has
a bachelor of laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in laws
from the University of Hong Kong. She also has a master of
corporate finance degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, Ms. Chan has satisfied the

requirement of the Listing Rules for receiving 15 hours of
professional training.
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PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT
TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the company secretary of the Company,
who is responsible for forwarding communications relating to
matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to the Board and
communications relating to ordinary business matters, such as
suggestions and inquiries, to the senior management of the
Company:

By post

Rooms 4917-4932, 49/F
Sun Hung Kai Centre

30 Harbour Road, Wan Chai
Hong Kong

By email
jovey.chan@haotianhk.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the
shareholders’ meetings.

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING GENERAL
MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit to convene extraordinary general meetings.

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings.

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company by mail at Rooms 4917-4932,
49/F, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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TEERRE

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING GENERAL
MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles of
Association for including a resolution at any general meeting. The
requirements and procedures are set out above in the paragraph
headed "Procedures for convening general meetings by

shareholders”.
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors recognise the importance of long-term support from
the Shareholders of the Company. The Company attaches great
priority to establish effective communication with its Shareholders
and investors. In an effort to enhance such communications, the
Company provides information relating to the Company and its
business in its annual report and also disseminates such information

electronically through its website at http://www.haotianint.com.hk

The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important
event as it provides an opportunity for direct communication
between the Board and its Shareholders. All Directors, senior
management and external auditors will make an effort to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company to address Shareholders'
queries. All the Shareholders of the Company are given at least
twenty one (21) days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual
general meeting of the Company. The Company supports the CG

Code's principle to encourage Shareholders’ participation.

The Board will review regularly the Group's operation and
corporate governance of the Company in order to ensure
compliance of the Articles of Association of the Company, the laws
of the Cayman Islands and regulations and to protect the interest

of its shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

There was no changes in the constitutional document of the
Company during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (the “year under review").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

As at the date of this annual report, the Company is principally
engaged in the business of (a) provision of financial services and
related financial advisory services through subsidiaries licensed to
conduct (i) Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities under the SFO; (ii) money lending
activities; and (iii) brokerage of general insurance and long term
(including linked long term) insurance; and (b) rental and trading of

construction machinery.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in

note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year under review are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page year under review. No dividend was paid or
proposed by the Company during the year under review, nor has
any dividend been proposed by the Directors since the end of the

year under review.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group during the year under
review and the discussion on the Group's future business
development are set out in the sections headed “Director’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”, and the
key financial performance indicators are set out in the section
headed, "Management Discussion and Analysis”. The financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
discussions on the Group's relationships with key stakeholders,
environmental policies and performance and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the

Group are as follows:
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ESERE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Relationship with key stakeholders

The Group's success depends on the support from key stakeholders
which comprise employees, customers and subcontractors and

suppliers.
Employees

Employees are regarded as important and valuable assets of the
Group. The objective of the Group’s human resource management
is to reward and recognise performing staff by providing a
competitive remuneration package and implementing a sound
performance appraisal system with appropriate incentives, and to
promote career development and progression by appropriate
training and providing opportunities within the Group for career

advancement.
Customers

The major customers include construction work companies
engaged in either public or private construction projects in Hong
Kong which require particular types of construction machinery at
different stages of their projects. We have established long-term
business relationship with some of the customers for over 10 years.
The sales and marketing team maintains contacts with these
customers regularly to understand their needs and to provide

relevant information to support their projects.
Suppliers

The major suppliers include manufacturers and service providers of
construction machinery, oil companies, and other third-party service
companies for maintenance, transportation and assembly/
disassembly services engaged by us. We proactively communicate
with the suppliers to ensure they are committed to delivering high-
quality and sustainable products and services. We will select
suppliers from the pre-approved lists of subcontractors and

suppliers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

We believe that our business also depends on our ability to meet
our customers’ requirements in respect of safety, quality and
environmental aspects. To meet our customers’ requirements on
safety, quality and environmental aspects, we have established
safety, quality and environmental management systems. Through
the systematic and effective control of our operations, compliance
with safety, quality and environmental requirements can be further
assured. Further discussions on the Group’s environmental policy
and performance are covered by a separate Environmental, Social
and Governance Report which will be available at the Group's
website and the website of the Stock Exchange on or before end of
September 2019.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Based on the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
complied in all material respect with laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the Company.
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group identified and determined the major risks which may
affect the operation results and financial conditions of the Group

through risk management process, which including the following:

Risk in delay or default of payment in the Group’s money
lending business

As at 31 March 2019, the outstanding loan receivables of the money
lending business of the Group (net of impairment) was
approximately HK$163.3 million, representing approximately 28.5%
of the total current assets of the Company. Any delay or default in
payment of the loans will have an adverse impact on the Company’s
working capital, cash flow and subsequently the profits of the

Company.
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ESERE

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Risk in delay or default of payment in the Group’s money
lending business (continued)

To manage such risk, the Company requires borrowers to provide
appropriate security and closely monitors the loan receivable
collection cycle from time to time to get full collection of the
outstanding amounts due from customers. The Company will assess
and decide to enforce the security provided by customers or take
legal actions as appropriate. All exposures are subject to regular
review and assessment for possible impairment.

Compliance risk

The Group operates financial services business through subsidiaries
with appropriate licenses to conduct regulated activities, insurance
agency and money lending. During the course of proving such
financial services, the Group would be exposed to compliance risk,
including the risk of legal liability, being subjected to regulatory
proceedings, disciplinary action, or loss of property or business
reputation arising from violation of laws, regulations and rules due
to the operation and management or practices of the Group or its
personnel. In order to effectively control compliance risk, the Group
has put in place a practicable compliance management system and
provided resources and support to develop lawful and compliant
operations of the Group.

Financial risk

The Group's diversified business is exposed to a variety of risks,
such as market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk. Further details of
the financial risk management objectives and policies are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and of the Group during the year under review are set
out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year under review are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year

under review are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 79.

54 Annual Report F#f 2018/19

TERBRTABEE (B)
FEEBERLE BN IEER AR (F)

REBZERR  ARBERERARMEE 2K
Wi YRR EERRE R BB - B
WEEKERF 2 RMEERE - ARRKFEREE
HITHERPAREZER R 2 BN REUERTE
(asER) - FrB R D E 78 E Bt st KT R EZ
AJREME o

BRER

AEEZBABEERBIETIRELY  RR
REERREXBZMBARKESRBREER - 1
REZFERRG BES  NEBAEEHZ R
BREAR  BEREAASERHEEERLEEIANE
TTRERIER AR MNRTEMEMAKERELE
RERAEME HOEERER A TLRERS - HERY
ERAHIBEEBERZAR - REREZERA
@ ARBEENE-EANTAREESNE  AXEE
REERCEREBRAEEREIE

Bt 75 LB

AEEZ S TCEBAENSAR  FEARRR
HELARSSBEAR - HHARERLBREE
ZiE— S HERN AR B RENE9 -

ME - BERRE
ARARAEERBEEE ZNE BERRHBE
BHEUNGA B HRENE 14

A

ARARREBEFEE 2 BAZEFBEHNGE Y B R
KMIFE33 ©

it

REEREBEFE 2 FHEESDFBHNREIOE 24

AERREE -



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the Company had reserves amounted to
approximately HK$550.7 million available for distribution as
calculated based on Company’s share premium, capital reserve and
accumulated losses under applicable provisions of the Companies
Law in the Cayman Islands.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 220. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year under review and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P,, (Australia)
Mr. Fok Chi Tak
Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong
Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot

Information regarding directors’ emoluments are set out in note 9
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section
headed "Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” in this report.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles, any director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general

meeting at least once every three years.

Dr. Zhiliang Ou and Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua will retire from office
as Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. Both of the aforesaid Directors, being eligible, will offer

themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years unless terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party
on the other, and is subject to termination provisions therein and
provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in the
Memorandum and the Articles. Each independent non-executive
Director had a letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years which shall be renewable by mutual agreement
thereafter. During the tenure, the appointment may be terminated
by either party giving the other not less than three months’ notice

in writing.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and
none of the Directors, or their spouses or children under the age of
18, had any rights to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or

had exercised any such right during the year under review.
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save (i) the placing agreement dated 10 May 2017 entered into
among the Company and Hao Tian International Securities Limited
and Kingston Securities Limited; and (ii) as disclosed under the
section headed “Share Option Scheme"” below, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the

year under review.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company had registered an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFQO")) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he
was taken or deemed to have under provision of the SFO) or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred to therein or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EEERE
EE R AR 2R

RO EFEAERRR - ARRHEEMKMERRL
BELEMNRZY  BEEFEBEARRREMNHE
{mxf/\l gzl EEEMER  BEREEFE
BEERAERBH T N\FRATZFREREMA
RBARRES < EMNREITEEMZFER -

IR SR 89 160

ROARRRRXERESTRADREFLES
BRAAMTLAMA-S L&A +AZES
3% R ) T3 (R BRERH)) — AR BE S - &
BT T S B DT A 2 (AR 4
5 -

EERFETHRAEBRRSG HEARGOR
BEED 2EDS

RZFB-NAFZA=+—H HSIBEFIER
ZITRABRAEAR Tiﬁ&ﬂ*ﬁﬁwil(;ﬁ%ﬁ%\%
ERIE ST BFE S RAEER ([Z5 KB ]) #
XVER) 2 B kBRI D sk BREE T - HERRIBE S
&Hﬁif1lm1§|J%XV*|3%7&8’\* AHEARRE B
Pz s sOR R (BIERIBRE 7 R BRI 1R 30
TF&%EET?&EZ%‘ xm)  BRIERE S RME
R 58 352 (7R RC AR RBP4 B iC M SR IR AR 2 <7
B ANR R R 2 SRR ©

Annual Report %% 2018/19 57



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBFE &R ELEEBR AR

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company), who had interests or
short positions in the Shares, the underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporation within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO which were required to be disclosed pursuant
to the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein, were as follows:

FERRRRG - HEROREEEZHZ
s

RZBE-NAF=ZA=+—H REFHAEAQTAEE
TBRABMA - THAL(BEFLARREZTHA
BRI RARBRERBEEB(ERREFRHE
{RBIE XVER) 2 Btn - B REEE D EARE
B MEERPIEXV B2 2 R 3D BB IGRSTUE T ER -
HIRIBRE 5 M B S 1601 % 336 KRB RC ARZ IRDIFTIE &
RO Z ERBORBLAT

Number of Percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest shares held  shareholding
(Note 1)
BREEEB B RERtE FREAE RET DL
(B&E1)
Hao Tian Management (China) Limited Beneficial owner 2,332,384,688 56.2%
("HTM China"”) (Note 2)
EREXEER(FE)ARAR BEHEAA

(ZRREXEE(RE) D (FHE2)

Hao Tian Management (Hong Kong) Limited  Beneficial owner 580,104,000 13.98%
("HTM HK") (Note 2)

EXREE(FB)BRAA BEaSlEBAA
(RREE(FEE)DHE2)

Hao Tian Development Group Limited Interests of controlled corporation 2,912,488,688 70.18%
("HTD") (Note 2)

EREREEERAB([ERER] (MT2) SEHIEEREZR

Li Shao Yu (Note 2) Interests of controlled corporation 2,912,488,688 70.18%

ZFF (£ 2) SEGEEE R

China Construction Bank Corporation Security interest 2,332,384,688 56.2%

("CCBC") (Note 3)
PEIZRRITRMHDBERAR ([HEZT]) YERHELS
(B&E3)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)

Notes:

1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 4,150,000,000
shares in issue as at 31 March 2019.

2. Win Team Investments Limited (“Win Team”) holds (a) 100% of the issued
shares in HTM China, and (b) 92.41% of the issued shares in HTM HK. Win
Team is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HTD. Asia Link Capital Investment
Holdings Limited (“Asia Link”) held 57.93% of the issued shares in HTD.
Asia Link is directly wholly-owned by Ms. Li Shao Yu.

3. CCBC, through Cheer Hope Holdings Limited, which is its indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary, held the security interest in those 2,332,384,688 shares
in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Company had
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred to therein.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company'’s share option scheme was adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on 23 October 2015 for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible persons who the Board considers,
in its sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group. Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant
options to eligible persons, including directors of the Company and
its subsidiaries, to subscribe for the Shares. Eligible persons of the
Share Option Scheme, amongst others, include any executives, any
employee (including proposed, full-time or part-time employee), a
director or proposed director (including an independent non-
executive director), a direct or indirect shareholder of any member
of the Company and its subsidiaries and an associate of any of the

aforementioned persons.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The Board shall set out in the offer the terms on which the option is
to be granted. The maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in
issue from time to time. No options shall be granted under the
Share Option Scheme at any time if such grant shall result in the

scheme limit being exceeded.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the total number of Shares in issue as at the Listing Date. The
Company may seek approval of its Shareholders in general meeting

for refreshing such 10% limit.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each Eligible Person (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue for the time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to

Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Any grant of options to any Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (as such term as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company, or any of their respective associates under the Share
Option Scheme is subject to the prior approval of the independent
non-executive Directors (excluding independent non-executive
Directors who or whose associates is the grantee of an options).
Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or any of their respective
associates, would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue on the
date of such grant; and (i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, in excess of
HK$5.0 million, such further grant of the options shall be subject to
prior approval of the Shareholders with such person and his

associates abstaining from voting in favour of general meeting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. Options
granted shall be taken up upon payment of HK$1 as consideration
for the grant of option. Options may be exercised at any time from
the date which option is deemed to be granted and accepted and
expired on the date as the Board in its absolute discretion
determine and which shall not exceeding a period of 10 years from
the date on which the share options are accepted but subject to
the provisions for early termination thereof contained in the Share

Option Scheme.

The subscription price is determined by the Board, and shall not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of offer
and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date. The Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
23 October 2015. No share options were granted, forfeited or
expired during the Year. As at the date of this annual report, the
total number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme was 100,000,000 Shares, representing approximately 4.17%

of the issued shares of the Company.
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Acquisition of shares in Hao Tian International Financial
Holdings Limited

On 28 March 2018 (after trading hours), Solution Pro Investments
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Hao
Tian Development Group Limited (“Hao Tian Development”, the
controlling shareholder of the Company), and the Company
entered into the sales and purchase agreement in relation to an
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of Hao Tian
International Financial Holdings Limited at the total consideration
was HK$180,000,000 payable in cash. Completion took place on 13
December 2018 whereupon the target company has become an

indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION (continued)

Acquisition of shares in Hao Tian Management (Hong
Kong) Limited

On 17 December 2018 (after trading hours), Glory Century Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Hao Tian
Management (Hong Kong) Limited (which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Hao Tian Development), and the Company entered
into the sales and purchase agreement in relation to an acquisition
of approximately 4.05% of the issued share capital of China
Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited (stock code 412) and
the total consideration of HK$198,000,000 was be satisfied in full by
the allotment and issue of the 550,000,000 consideration shares by
the Company to the Vendor or its nominee(s) at the price of
HK$0.36 per consideration share upon completion. Completion

took place on 15 February 2019.

Issue of Emolument shares to Mr. Gao Zhangpeng (“Mr.
Gao")

Mr. Gao has been appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company with effect on 1 March 2019. Pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the service contract with Mr. Gao (the “Service
Contract”), the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue a total of 12,129,380 emolument shares representing
approximately 0.29% of the existing total issued Shares of the
Company (the "Emolument Shares”). The value of Emolument
Shares is equivalent to an aggregate value of approximately
HK$4,500,000 based on the average closing price of HK$0.371 per

share.

The Stock Exchange granted tis approval for the listing of, and
permission to deal in the Emolument Shares on 6 May 2019. Among
which, 4,043,126 Emolument Shares will be issued by the Company
within 30 days following each anniversary date of the appointment
date of Mr. Gao during the 3-year terms of the Service Contract
and Mr. Gao's entitlement to the annual Emolument Shares will be
made on a pro-rata basis if there is an early termination of the

Service Contract.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year under review set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements included transactions that constitute
connected/continuing connected transactions for which the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules have been

complied with.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected
Transactions” and in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year under review.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the Management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year under review.
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year under review, none of the Directors or HTM China
and their respective associates had any interests in a business,
apart from the business of the Group, which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group or has any other conflict of
interest with the Group which would be required to be disclosed
under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every director shall subject
to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets or profits of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or

otherwise in relation thereto.
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ESERE

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION (continued)

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors of the Company during the year under

review.
EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group was set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence. The emolument of the Directors
are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme as an incentive
to eligible persons, details are set out under heading “Share

Option Scheme” in this annual report.
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in

note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles or
the laws of Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 March 2019, the market capitalisation of the listed shares
of the Company was approximately HK$1,473.3 million based on
the total number of 4,150,000,000 issued shares of the Company
and the closing price of HK$0.355 per share.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is public available to the Company
and to the best knowledge of the Directors, during the year under
review, at least 25% of the Company’s issued shares were held by

the public as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS TEEFRER

The percentages of the Group’s turnover and purchases HE-_Z-—AER T N\E=A=+—HBILFE
attributable to major customers and suppliers during the year FTEZXFEHEEEGAEEEEERRKER B

ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 are as follows: DA
For the year ended
BEUTHHLEE
31 March 31 March
2019 2018
—E-hF —FN\F
== Sl Hm = =icoat-]
Percentage of turnover: EERFADL
From the largest customer REZAEP 11.4% 12.5%
From the five largest customers in aggregate HREAKEF 2 &% 42.3% 45.8%
Percentage of purchase: HEREA O
From the largest supplier RERARER 42.3% 15.9%
From the five largest suppliers in aggregate REAAEER 2 425 66.5% 51.8%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders WAREE » BEEE « HE 7 BHHE A ST IRE
(which to the knowledge of the Directors who owned more than 5%  (JBEEFTAMESHE RN RARIBRARS% A E) RAKRE
of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in the five largest B s {t fEE A (E4E -

customers nor suppliers during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE BE  HEIBEALQF LHES
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, RERBEEE  AQATHEFARBATMERE « L
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the S ERERIAAT L HES -

year under review.

On behalf of the Board REREZE

Fok Chi Tak RREBEZRREEEBRA A
Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited HITEE

Executive Director EXE

Hong Kong, 10 June 2019 BE ZE-NFEXATH
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IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF HAO TIAN INTERNATIONAL
CONSTRUCTION INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hao Tian
International Construction Investment Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 75 to 219, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
Impairment assessment of trade and loan receivables

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 3, critical
accounting estimates and judgements in note 4 and disclosure of
trade and loan receivables in note 21 and 19 to the consolidated

financial statements respectively.

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of trade and loan
receivables is approximately HK$245,463,000 (2018: HK$81,595,000),
after making loss allowance of approximately HK$25,524,000 (2018:
HK$5,161,000). It represents approximately 22.7% (2018: 12.9%) of
the total assets of the Group and is considered quantitatively

significant to the Group.

The Group's loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses (“ECLs"), while loss
allowance on loan receivables is measured at an amount equal to
12 months ECLs, unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognizes lifetime ECLs. The estimated loss rates take into account
the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and
an assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date

as well as the forecast of future conditions.

We have identified impairment assessment of trade and loan
receivables as a key audit matter due to considerable amount of
judgement and estimates being required in conducting impairment

assessment as mentioned in the forgoing paragraph.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Our response

Our procedures in relation to assess the impairment assessment of

trade and loan receivables included the following:

J Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt collection and the

calculation of the ECLs;

o Assessing the trade and loan receivables ageing report by
group based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due by comparing the details of individual items with

underlying invoices and agreements on a sample basis;

o Obtaining an understanding of the basis of management’s
approach to measuring ECLs of trade and loan receivable
balances and assessing the reasonableness of management's
loss allowance estimates by examining the information used
by management to form such judgments, including testing
the accuracy of the historical default data, evaluating whether
the historical loss rate are appropriately adjusted based on
current economic conditions and forward-looking

information;

o Comparing cash receipts from debtors subsequent to the
financial year end relating to trade and loan receivable
balances with bank statements and relevant underlying

documentation on a sample basis;

J Engaging an independent and qualified valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating the methodology used by
management in the preparation of the calculation of the ECLs
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing

accounting standards.
Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 3, critical
accounting estimates and judgements in note 4 and disclosure of

property, plant and equipment in note 14 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is approximately HK$243,860,000 (2018:
HK$285,977,000). Approximately HK$307,000 impairment loss in
respect of the property, plant and equipment was recognised
during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$4,000,000).

Management performed an impairment assessment when
indicators of impairment were identified. Management determined
the recoverable amounts based on the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. When performing an impairment
assessment, management used the fair value less costs of disposal
and compared the carrying values of property, plant and
equipment, to determine the impairment loss which should be
recognised for the year, if any.

We have identified impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment as a key audit matter due to considerable amount of
judgement and estimates being required in conducting impairment

assessment as mentioned in the forgoing paragraph.
Our response

Our procedures in relation to assess the impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment included the following:

o Understanding management’s basis and assessment in
relation to the impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment including the valuation model adopted and the
involvement of independent valuer appointed by the Group;

o Performing fixed assets count and attending fixed assets
inspection to identify the existence of any obsolete and idle
property, plant and equipment and the physical conditions of
property, plant and equipment;

° Inspecting, on a sample basis, historical disposal value to sale
invoices and preforming market research and analysis to
assess whether the estimated resale values of property, plant

and equipment was reasonable;

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
independent professional valuer;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

o Engaging our independent and qualified valuation specialists
to assist us in evaluating the impairment assessment
methodology, the key assumptions applied and calculations
contained with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018, were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 22 June
2018.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the

directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Wan Che Bun

Practising Certificate no. P05804

Hong Kong, 10 June 2019
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEEEREMEZEIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

2019 2018
—E-AE —ZEN\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Lz FET FHET
Revenue WA 5 176,518 165,869
Cost of revenue g AR AR (148,779) (152,396)
Gross profit EF 27,739 13,473
Other income, other gains and losses Ha A ~ Hplizs M EsE 7 24,892 12,181
Administrative expenses TR (45,319) (33,949)
Expected credit loss on financial assets & @& E 2 FEHEEEE (11,560) -
Share of profit of joint ventures DMEEERFE R 5,453 E
Finance costs RUE AR 8 (7,815) (7,630)
Loss before taxation BrEL A E R (6,610) (15,925)
Income tax credit PSR % 10 153 3,399
Loss and total comprehensive expense  FAEE L2 ERF X 4258
for the year 19 (6,457) (12,526)
Attributable to: LA AL RELS -
Owners of the Company VIN/NCIEZZ N (6,452) (12,528)
Non-controlling interests FEEAR R (5) 2
(6,457) (12,526)
(Restated)
(&=7)
Loss per share (HK cents) iz EE (Bl)
Basic B=IN (0.20) (0.52)
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBFE &R ELEEBR AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BT RS IR &

At 31 March 2019 ®R=Z—hE=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Lz FET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M -~ R MR 14 243,860 285,977
Intangible assets B EE 15 16,419 -
Gooduwill mE 16 46,417 -
Finance lease receivables RUE M E E W FIA 18 6,901 9,529
Loan receivables FEWE X 19 16,046 =
Deferred tax assets FEETIRE = 31 3,913 4,743
Pledged bank deposits EHEMRITIFR 24 4,654 4,627
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries WEEKTB AR 28] & 22 - 100,000
Deposits for acquisition of property, WY  MEMREZF®
plant and equipment 22 2,719 414
Interests in joint ventures REBLE R 17 165,387 -
506,316 405,290
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 78 20 1,716 14,410
Trade receivables 2 5 W FIE 21 82,158 81,595
Other receivables, deposits and H WA« ek
prepayments TE{ IR 22 4,500 4,061
Finance lease receivables Bl & S R IE 18 7,104 6,959
Loan receivables EWER 19 147,259 -
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries JE Uk [F] BT A B FRIE 28 11,283 -
Amount due from a director FEW — B EEHIA 28 - 55
Financial assets at fair value through AAFEETE B EZEEA
profit or loss R emEE 23 114,376 =
Tax recoverable AR E I8 707 2,207
Bank balances, trust and segregated IRITHEER ~ [BRERIB VRS
accounts 24 7,266 -
Bank balances and cash RITEHR AR E 24 129,543 119,709
505,912 228,996
Assets classified as held for sales DA IEHEEE 25 68,086 -
Total current assets mEEEMRE 573,998 228,996
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B BT RS IR R

At 31 March 2019 R=Z—AF=A=+—8

2019 2018
—E-hAE —ZEN\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ihg=a FHET FETT
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables B S ENFIE 26 14,009 21,980
Accruals, deposits received and other EETER - Bdlire Xk
payables H fth FE T FRI8 27 17,613 13,039
Contract liabilities AHatE 5 628 =
Amount due to a director Bt —REEHIR 28 7.434 =
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEN R ZH B A T3/ IE 28 5,034 260
Amount due to an intermediate AN b2 /NI E ]
holding company 4,290 -
Borrowings B’E 29 118,117 113,266
Obligations under finance leases REMEEST 30 4,153 4,340
Loan from a director KE—RBEEZERX 28 40,000 =
Tax payable e A 18 614 -
211,892 152,885
Liabilities directly associated with assets E2 48 AL EEEEZ
classified as held for sales EEzaE 40 =
Total current liabilities mBBERRE 211,932 152,885
Net current assets REBEESE 362,066 76,111
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRARBEE 868,382 481,401
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings ==} 29 37,681 52,005
Obligations under finance leases BMEMEESE 30 5,704 8,341
Loan from a director RKE—RBESZEX 28 30,000 40,000
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 31 28,236 28,063
101,621 128,409
Net assets EEFE 766,761 352,992
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBFE &R ELEEBR AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BT RS IR &

At 31 March 2019 ®R=Z—hE=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Lz FET FHETT
Equity R

Share capital N 33 41,500 24,000
Reserves 11 725,014 328,740

Equity attributable to owners RRATHER NELER
of the Company 766,514 352,740
Non-controlling interests SRR 247 252
Total equity FEESHAEE 766,761 352,992

The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 219 were  FE75E219EMGA M BREACHESTeRN - F
approved by the Board of Directors on 10 June 2019 and are signed ~ —hE XA+ BEEMI B T EERKRER
on its behalf by:

FOK CHI TAK TANG YIU CHI JAMES
BEE HEE

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG N 3 Non-
Share Share Capital Merger Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve profits  Subtotal interests Total

Bx  ROBE EXEE  AfiRE  RiER Nt FERES @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL Tin TEn Thn TEL Tin TEL Thn
(note b) (note a)

(With)  (Kita)

At 1 April 2017 RZE-+£MA-H 10,000 62,34 6,291 1,000 164,253 24389 20 244148

(Loss) profit and total comprehensive /()RR 2 (F)

(expense) income for the year WAEE = = = = (1252) (1252 2 (12,526)
Issue of shares by placing (net of et EBREX RN (IR ERE

attributable cost] (Note 33(o)) AR (R 33(0)) 2000 119370 - = - 130 - 130
Issue of bonus shares (Note 33(c) BT (M 33(0) 12,000 (12,000) = - = - - -
At 31 March 2018 R=E-\E=f=1-H 24,000 169,724 6,291 1,000 151,725 352,740 52 352992
Initial application of HKFRS 9 MEEREARBREENZR - = = = (11209 (11,209 = (11,200)
Restated at 1 April 2018 R-2-\ENA—-BES| 24000 169,724 6,291 1,000 140,520 341,535 252 341,787

Loss and total comprehensive expense  ENEERZER L AE

for the year - - - = (6,452) (6452 §)] (6,457)
Issue of right shares (net of direct SRR (R ERE(RRE)

attributable cost) (Note 33(d) (B3E33(d)) 12000 166981 = S - 178981 - 178981
Issue of shares (Note 33(e)) AR (i 33) 5,500 198,000 48950 = - 5450 - 5450
At 31 March 2019 RoE-h&E=R=1-H 41500 534,705 55,241 1,000 134068 766,514 7 766,761
Notes: PffsE -

(@)  The merger reserve represents the difference between the total equity of  (a) AHFEEENBEFEETEREAMEEZWER
subsidiaries and the aggregated share capital of the relevant subsidiaries AR REERRAMN B R AR AR 2 FREE o
arisen from a group reorganisation occurred in prior years.

(b) The capital reserve represents the deemed capital contribution from the (b) EARFBIEFRRBEFEERARRME LTRSS MR

Company'’s holding company in relation to listing expenses reimbursed to BARAABZERARNBIEENTE  UREE-ZT
the Company in prior years and acquisition of financial assets at fair value —NE=ZRA=T—HILFEREAAFEFEEHE
through profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2019. Lt ABmz @RMEE °
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBFE &R ELEEBR AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEBRETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

2019 2018
—E-hAEFE —ZEN\F
HK$/000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R&E£KFFEBRESRE
Loss before taxation BRTiRIE A (6,610) (15,925)
Adjustments for: HATHBELFE -
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair ~ AAFEAEBHEE(LAHABRZ SR
value through profit or loss BEZNTEE (17,927) =
Share of results of joint ventures DA ERHEEE (5,453) -
Interest income from bank deposits AT Z M B A (48) (26)
Finance lease income BEREWA (1,471) (673)
Finance costs AR 7,815 7,630
Gain on disposal and write-off of property, HERMEDZE BER
plant and equipment, net Bl EaE R (52) (466)
Depreciation of property, M - WEREETE
plant and equipment 39,397 44,351
Amortisation of intangible assets B E 601 7
Reversal of allowance for bad BB RIZREE
and doubtful debt = (9,795)
Compensation received from a customer BER—EZEFEE (5,229) -
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts REBREHE = 921
Expenses on issue of bonus shares BATHIIRF S - 447
Impairment loss of property, plant M - BE RERERERE
and equipment 307 4,000
Expected credit losses on financial assets TREEEREEEE 11,560 -
Operating profit before working capital EEESEBBRLL R
changes 22,890 30,464
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FMERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

2019 2018
—E-AE —ZEN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Decrease in bank balances, trust IRITHEER  [BRERBRPIR D
and segregated accounts 6,780 =
Increase in loan receivables FEM E FIE BN (160,131) =
Decrease (increase) in finance lease receivables Fi&TH & fEU G IB R 2> (3 H1) 3,054 (8,462)
Decrease in inventories FER D 17,234 4,362
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 EUGRIER 30,775 1,540
Decrease in other receivables, HpEIsIE - He RIEN
deposits and prepayments FIER 2,548 1,102
(Decrease) increase in trade payables B SR RIE O ) &0 (31,272) 13,930
Increase (decrease) in accruals, deposits FEsTER - B e R E A ER
received and other payables FIAE I CR) 7,820 (4,681)
Cash (used in) generated from operations “iE (FTA) FBIRS (100,302) 38,255
Income tax refunded (paid), net RE (B FRSHF5E 1,286 (1,265)
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM Rk (FrA) ISREFEE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (99,016) 36,990
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZEFIEREFKE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE  WENMRE (47,575) (50,367)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE RFHFTFHRIE
plant and equipment 820 663
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEYE BEAREZENTE
plant and equipment (2,719) (414)
Repayment from related companies BE N TENR = 21
Advance to related companies MR N A AR - (19
Advance to a director M—BEEAR = (55)
Deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries WEE B AR 2 EftaT& - (100,000)
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired UWEEMIE A7) * FBRFIEBAIRE (16,044) -
Acquisition of joint ventures WHE & &b (3,934) =
Increase in pledged bank deposits EEMRITERE N - (24)
Bank interest received BRI TH S 21 26
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ®REEZEFMARLSFEE (69,431) (150,169
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REREBRAR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEBRETRER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

2019 2018
—E-NEF — N\
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES @& ZESFFERESRE
Interest paid BEAFLE (6,465) (6,896)
Proceeds from new borrowings HFEERERIA 28,459 102,611
Repayments of borrowings BiEEE (56,071) (89,571)
Repayments of obligation under finance leases EEFIEHE & (T (4,236) (5,408)
Advance from an intermediate R E — R REER A E 2 B
holding company 20,837 -
Advance from fellow subsidiaries RERRZWB AR 2K = 260
Repayment to fellow subsidiaries BERRMME A RIA (20,713)
Repayment to a director BE—RBEEHA (16,943) (2,793)
Loan from a director RE—REZZER 30,000 40,000
Advance from a director RE—BEEZBR 24,432 2,483
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares T E R TS RIA 180,000 124,000
Expenses on right issue HARF (1,019)
Expenses on placing of shares R &SR - (2,630)
Expenses on issue of bonus shares BATHIIRFA S = (447)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REEE B ESTE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 178,281 161,609
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND R RRSSENENFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 9,834 48,430
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FOEREREALEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 119,709 71,208
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF #XRERBE£EEY
THE YEAR 129,543 119,709
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group
Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2004 revision) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the its registered office is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1108 Cayman lIslands and its principal place of business in
Hong Kong changes to Rooms 4917-4932, 49/F, Sun Hung
Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company is
Hao Tian Management (China) Limited and Asia Link Capital
Investment Holdings Limited, which are incorporated in Hong
Kong and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), respectively, and

the ultimate controlling shareholder is Ms. Li Shao Yu.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
Group is principally engaged in rental of construction
machinery, trading of construction machinery, spare parts and
construction materials, provision of machinery transportation,
repair and maintenance services and provision of
commodities, future, securities brokerage and financial

services mainly in Hong Kong.

—REHR

ZREFERIREEEBRAA(ARRA DR
BRESEREATNA(ZZEZENFEIRN)FER
EERSHESTMRIAERR2ERAR] - A
BN EBBERZABR AR (B E
R o HFMER AL A Clifton House,
75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1108 Cayman Islands + &% Z & ¥ 2,
EEHMATEEF BEERMBER 49
1B 4917-4932% o

RRBRZEERZGEERARREREXERE
(hEDARARREHAEZERBRAR - 5
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FEVBBRANRNRBZINEER BT B
T2 e

RRARR/—HREZERAF  MAKEEER
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REREBRAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

2.

84

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

The Group has applied for the first time the following new
and revised standards and interpretation (“new and revised
HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") which are effective for the
Group's financial year beginning on or after 1 April 2018.

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time adoption
of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle Associates and Joint Ventures
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in

these consolidated financial statements.

The new and revised HKFRSs have been applied in
accordance with the relevant transition provisions in the
respective standards and amendments which results in
changes in accounting policies, amounts reported and/or

disclosures.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Changes in accounting policies of application on
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” ("HKFRS 15")

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the
first time retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying this Standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 April 2018. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
"Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and the
related interpretations with no material effect on timing and
amount of revenues recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major

sources:
° Leasing of construction machineries

o Lending of money

. Provision of commodities, futures and securities

brokerage services
o Provision of various services for construction machineries
° Sales of construction machineries and materials

Revenue from leasing of construction machineries will
continue to be accounted for in accordance with HKAS 17

"lLeases”. Interest revenue is accounted for under HKFRS 9.

Revenue from provision of various services for construction
machineries and provision of commodities, futures and
securities brokerage services are recognised at a point in time
when the Group completes satisfaction of the relevant

performance obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

2.

86

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Changes in accounting policies of application on
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” ("HKFRS 15") (continued)

Revenue from sales of construction machineries and materials
is recognised when the respective goods have been
completed and delivered to the customers which is a point in
time when customers have the ability to direct the use of the
construction machineries and materials and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of the construction

machineries and materials.

HKFRS 15 introduces a 5-step approach when recognising

revenue:
o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the

contract
° Step 3: Determine the transaction price
o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Group

satisfies a performance obligations

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance

obligation is transferred to the customer.
A performance obligation represents goods and services (or a

bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Changes in accounting policies of application on
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” ("HKFRS 15") (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods or services.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of
its promise is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal)
or to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by
the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.
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88

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time
value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the associated goods or services is less than one year, the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the

transaction price for any significant financing component.
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been
obtained.

The Group recognises such costs as an asset if it expects to
recover these costs. The asset so recognised is subsequently
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate. The asset is subject to

impairment review.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within

one year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract (continued)

The directors of the Company have assessed that the revenue
from sales of construction machineries and materials
represent only one performance obligation and, accordingly,
revenue will be recognised for this performance obligation
when control over the corresponding goods is transferred to
the customer. The directors of the Company consider that
there is no significant impact in respect of revenue
recognition on sales of construction machinery and materials
under HKFRS 15.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
application of HKFRS 15 has no material impact on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements
and classification of items in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
the related amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” ("HKFRS 9”) and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for (1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, (2) expected credit
losses (“ECL") for financial assets and (3) general hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment) retrospectively to instruments that have not been
derecognised as at 1 April 2018 (date of initial application)
and has not applied the requirements to instruments that
have already been derecognised as at 1 April 2018. The
difference between carrying amounts as at 31 March 2018 and
the carrying amounts as at 1 April 2018 are recognised in the
opening retained profits and other components of equity,
without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” (“HKAS 39").
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
the related amendments (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 9

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers are

initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair
value, including unquoted equity investments measured at

cost less impairment under HKAS 39.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

3 the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash

flows and selling the financial assets; and

o the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
the related amendments (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets (continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the date
of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business

Combinations” applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a debt
investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “Other

income, other gains and losses” line item.

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed the
Group's financial assets as at 1 April 2018 based on the facts
and circumstances that existed at that date. Changes in
classification and measurement on the Group's financial
assets and the impacts thereof are detailed below.
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2.

92

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
the related amendments (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade receivables, loan receivables, other
receivables, finance lease receivables, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash). The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on trade receivables are assessed
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate

groupings.

After performing the assessment of expected credit loss on
the Group's existing trade receivables, HK$9,024,000 was
recognised by the Group as at 1 April 2018.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
the related amendments (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment under ECL model (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information

that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;
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2.

94

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and
the related amendments (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment under ECL model (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and

supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment

grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

The Group considers that default has occurred when the
instrument is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate

that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and

the related amendments (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment under ECL model (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking

information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest

rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables, loan
receivables and amounts due from associates where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.
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2.

96

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts and changes in accounting policies of
application on HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and

the related amendments (continued)

Key changes in accounting policies resulting from
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Impairment under ECL model (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

As at 1 April 2018, the directors of the Company reviewed and
assessed the Group's existing financial assets for impairment
using reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 9. The results of the assessment and
the impact thereof are detailed in below.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
To measure the ECL, contract assets and trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics.

Loss allowances for other financial assets at amortised cost
mainly comprise of loan receivables, other receivables and
finance lease receivables, are measured on 12m ECL basis
and there had been no significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

As at 1 April 2018, the additional credit loss allowance of
HK$11,205,000 has been recognised against retained profits.
The additional loss allowance is charged against the
respective asset.

Except as described above, the application of other
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material effect on the amounts reported and/or disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. EMFIRKEITERMBHREER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ([EBMEREED D (E)
("HKFRSs") (continued)
Impacts on opening consolidated statement of FER2 BT ERHBAAES MM R K
financial position arising from the application of all pd 2
new standards
As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting policies MR EXPH AR EE ST BREE - BGRe
above, the opening consolidated statement of financial IARRA KRBT ES - TRIIRHBEEREEB
position had to be restated. The following table shows the ERZ AT -
adjustments recognised for each individual line item.
31 March 1 April
2018 HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 2018
ZE-N\E FRUKEE BEUBHES —E-N\F
=RA=+—H ZERIE 95 ZERIE155 mA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET
(Audited) (Restated)
(&%) (& E75)
Non-current assets FREEE
Finance lease receivables @& & WFIA 9,529 - - 9,529
Others with no adjustments  E i R &L AEEIH B 395,761 = = 395,761
405,290 - - 405,290
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables B WA 81,595 (9,024) - 72,571
Other receivables, deposits At fEIFIE « & K
and prepayments BITHRIE 4,061 (581) - 3,480
Finance lease receivables A E W IE 6,959 (1,600) = 5,359
Others with no adjustments  E i R &L AEEIE B 136,381 = = 136,381
228,996 (11,205) - 217,791
Current liabilities REAR
Contract liabilities BRAR = - 1,951 1,951
Accruals, deposits received [EzTEH « BUUE S
and other payables R E A e FRIA 13,039 - (1,951) 11,088
Others with no adjustments  E R 4&EFHEEIEE 139,846 - - 139,846
152,885 - - 152,885
Net current assets REBEEFE 76,11 (11,205) - 64,906
Total assets less current  EEAERABEE
liabilities 481,401 (11,205) - 470,196
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. RAFIRZBETERUBREER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ([EEFEHREER ] (E)
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of FE P32 3R 57 5T 2 R H M 4R & B AR R 3k
financial position arising from the application of all 228 (E)

new standards (continued)

31 March 1 April
2018 HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 2018
—B-N\F EERUBERE BEUBES —E-N\§
=RA=+—H ERIE 95 ZRIE 155 mA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT FAT FAET
(Audited) (Restated)
(&&=7) (& E7)
Capital and reserves BERK#E
Equity attributable to ARRAER NGRS
owners of the Company 352,740 (11,205) = 341,535
Non-controlling interests IS 252 = = 252
Total equity A 352,992 (11,205) - 341,787
Non-current liabilities V=R
Deferred tax liability EEFHIEAE 28,063 - - 28,063
Other with no adjustments ~ E i R 4L A%EIE B 100,346 - - 100,346
128,409 - - 128,409
Total equity and ERBERERBEE
non-current liabilities 481,401 (11,205) - 470,196
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application of all
new standards (continued)

Transition

The Group has applied the transitional provision in HKFRS 9
such that HKFRS 9 was generally adopted without restating
comparative information. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new ECLs rules are therefore not
reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2018, but are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position on 1 April 2018. This means
that differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of HKFRS 9
are recognised in retained profits and reserves as at 1 April
2018. Accordingly, the information presented for the year
ended 31 March 2018 does not reflect the requirements of
HKFRS 9 but rather those of HKAS 39.

The following assessments have been made on the basis of
the facts and circumstances that existed at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9 (the “DIA"):

° The determination of the business model within which a

financial asset is held;

o The designation and revocation of previous
designations of certain financial assets and financial
liabilities as measured at fair value through profit or loss;

and

o The designation of certain investments in equity
investments not held for trading as at fair value through

other comprehensive income.

If an investment in a debt instrument had low credit risk at the
DIA, then the Group has assumed that the credit risk on the
asset had not increased significantly since its initial

recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs and interpretations that have been issued but

are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Lease'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates

and Joint Ventures'

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over income tax
treatments'
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
2015-2017 Cycle HKAS 12 and HKAS 23
Amendments to HKAS Definition of material?
1 and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of Business?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
¢ No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Except as described below, the directors do not anticipate
that the application of the new and revised HKFRSs will have
material impact on the Group's financial statements and/or
the disclosures to the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 "Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of use asset and
interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and
an interest portion and presents them in the statement of
cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the lease liability
are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and
also includes payments to be made in optional periods if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend
the lease, or to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases
under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those

two types of leases differently.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (continued)

As set out in Note 35, total operating lease commitment as
lessee of the Group in respect of leased premises as at 31
March 2018 and 2019 amounted to HK3,702,000 and
HK$960,000 respectively. The directors of the Group do not
expect the adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared with the
current accounting policy would result in significant impact on
the Group's result but it is expected that certain portion of
these lease commitments will be required to be recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-

use assets and lease liabilities.

The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK (IFRIC)-Int 4.
Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts
are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date

of initial application.

Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the modified
retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as
lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening retained profits without restating

comparative information.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for equity investments which have been
measured at fair value. Assets classified as held for sale are
stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values
less costs to sell as further explained in note 3. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of

Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

—  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;

— Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

—  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

—  has power over the investee;

—  has exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

—  has the ability to use its power over the investee to

affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FE®FBEXE)
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued) HmEERE(E)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains 7N B2 B FABRAS BT B A ) 428 S 4R P R A T R B B
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses NAEERE AR - WK EME A TR
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of IEHZEARGEa AR - BfgME - FAK
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are BN ENRBATKRARRE A AEBES
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and ZHE R EEARERTHIEFNBRARER
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains IEERfRIET AR Em R A M A K o
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income BakAteEBANGEER EEBERAR
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non- AIHEE ARFFERER - HEARZEWALL
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of BEFBEN AN RIER AN ER - BlfE
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and HE IR ER R B AL -

to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial MBENE  SHWBEQ A M BEREKELH
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies B B RS BREAAEE  SEBER— -

in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses FrEEREASEKERRIHR S ERA QT
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of HEEREE BE BA - AxXkBRERE
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. B E R R -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase

gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction

basis.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period, and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures; depending on the contractual
rights and obligations each investor has rather than the legal
structure of the joint arrangement. For the joint arrangements
that specify that the parties to the joint arrangements have
rights to the assets and obligations to the liabilities relating to
the joint arrangements, they are classified as joint operations.
For the remaining joint arrangements, they are classified as

joint ventures.

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is a
contractual arrangement that confers joint control over the
relevant activities of the arrangement to the group and at
least one other party. Joint control is assessed under the

same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as

either:

o Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only the

net assets of the joint arrangement; or
o Joint operations: where the group has both the rights to
assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint

arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint

arrangements, the Group considers:
o The structure of the joint arrangement;

o The legal form of joint arrangements structured through

a separate vehicle;

o The contractual terms of the joint arrangement

agreement; and

o Any other facts and circumstances (including any other

contractual arrangements).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Joint arrangements (continued)

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amounts are adjusted for the Group's share of
post-acquisition changes in the joint ventures’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group's interest in the joint
venture are not recognised unless there is an obligation to

make good those losses.

Profits or losses arising on the transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are recognised only to the extent
of unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture. The
investors’ share in the joint venture's profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the joint venture. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the assets transferred they

are recognised immediately to profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture above
the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the investment in joint
venture. Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in a joint venture has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the

same way as other non-financial assets.

The Group's interests in joint ventures are stated at cost less
impairment losses, if any. Results of joint ventures are
accounted for by the Group on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than operating

segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each

asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales

taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods or service is transferred over time if the Group's

performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed

simultaneously by the customer;

. creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls

as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the customer obtains control of the

goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception./
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or services is
one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the

practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Sale of rental machinery, machinery and spare parts

Customers obtain control of the machinery and spare parts
when the goods are delivered to and have been accepted.
Revenue is thus recognised at a point in time basis upon
when the customers accepted the machinery and spare parts.

There is generally only one performance obligation.
Provision of transportation service

Transportation services are generally provided within one
day. Revenue of transportation service is recognised at a
point in time basis when the customer obtains control of the

services. There is generally only one performance obligation.

Provision of dealing and broking services on securities,
futures and options

Commission income on securities dealing and broking,
futures and options dealing and broking are recorded as
income on a trade date basis at a point in time when the
control of relevant contract notes are transferred to
customers. Control of the promised goods are transferred to
the customer on completion of delivery of the goods. There is

generally only one performance obligation.
Other service income

Other service income which generated from rental of
construction machinery and sales of construction materials
business, the Group provides goods and service such as

inspection service and fuel & lubricant to customers.

Revenue of other service income is recognised at a point in
time basis when the customer obtains control of the goods or

services. There is generally only one performance obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over

the lease terms.
Interest income generated from money lending

Interest income was generated from money lending business
of providing property mortgage loans, machinery loans and
personal loans. Revenue represents interest income earned

from loans offered to the Group's customers.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis using the effective
interest method by apply applicable interest rate on (i) the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount less loss allowance
for credit-impaired financial assets) or (i) the gross carrying

amount for non-credit impaired financial assets.
Other income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be

measured reliably.

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated

customer returns and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group's activities, as described

below.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the

goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Service fee income is recognised when the services are

provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from finance leases and operating leases is described in the

accounting policy for leasing below.
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items and on the retranslation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

Borrowing costs which are not eligible for capitalisation to
qualifying assets are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the

contributions.
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit

in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after

deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities carrying amounts
resulting from service cost, interest and remeasurements are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an

asset.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘(loss) profit before taxation’
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable and deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse

in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect

of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and such costs are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy above). Contingent rentals are recognised

as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a

reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element

of the lease at initial recognition.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the leasehold land and building elements, the entire
property is generally classified as if the leasehold land is

under finance lease.

FEREFEE(E)

HE(E)
FEEBABA (E)

RETHENFRTIRERA B ERRR/FAX -

AT LREHERSHERS  RZFER
ERAAE BENSZEBENIZEREERS
& B2 2 FR ©

HELHRET

WARERME R (BREEL B RETH
MmN AEESREFESHBOBEREZ
BRED AR N E RS EBEAREE T
HE o RMERKEHE  BRIESEMBEILD
LBEERE  RUBERT - AIBEDEHA
ERREHE - BBME  EERE(BEE
fi] —£ BN FIA) REERRZEE it
Ab D RIETFHR R 2 HE R SR E A AL A
REEL M REFE Y 2B DR

=27 fikIET PEEET M RET D Z M1E
AR AIBENE - RESRBNES T
ﬁmﬁé% ERTZHTAEHDHE -

Annual Report F 3k 2018/19 119



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBFE &R ELEEBR AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
Such classification requires the asset or the disposal group
must be available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of
such asset or disposal group and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification. Non-current
assets as held for sale are measured at the lower of their

previous carrying amount and fair value less costs of sell.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold lands (classified as finance lease) held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes

in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their

expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount

of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on its cost
less their residual values on a straight-line basis at the

following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and
building
Leasehold improvements

over the lease terms

10 years or over the lease terms,

whichever is shorter

Machinery 10 years
Furniture and equipment  4-5 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is

regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately. The assets’ estimated useful lives
from the date they are available for use as follows:

Customer relationship 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed

annually.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

(continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below). Any conclusion that the useful life of an
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support the
indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for prospectively from the date of change
and in accordance with the policy for amortisation of

intangible assets with finite lives as set out above.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above.)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above.) (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates

of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weight
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs

of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value

of money is material).
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018)

(i)  Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially

measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or

convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and

interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group

classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or

loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair
value through OCI. Debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using
the effective interest rate method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income. On derecognition,
gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive

income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon
initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at
fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,

or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified
to profit or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised in profit

or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss ("ECL") on trade receivables, loan
receivables, other receivables and finance lease
receivables. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs
that result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs:
these are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the

Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the assets’

original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for
trade receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach
and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on
the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the

allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-

looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 90 days

past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any
is held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days
past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(iii)  Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured at fair value, net

of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair

value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are

recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(iii)  Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis;
(i) the liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities
which are managed and their performance evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or (iii) the financial liability
contains an embedded derivative that would need to

be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise, except for the
gains and losses arising from the Group's own credit risk
which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the statement of profit or loss does not include any

interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(iii)  Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, borrowings, certain preference shares
and the debt element of convertible loan note issued by
the Group are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The related

interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.
(iv) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a

shorter period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contact at
the higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance, being
the ECL provision measured in accordance with
principles of the the accounting policy set out in 4(k)
A(ii); and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in

accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (accounting policies applied
from 1 April 2018) (continued)

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for

derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part as
a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at their fair
value on the date the financial liability or part thereof is
extinguished. If the fair value of the equity instruments
issued cannot be reliably measured, the equity
instruments are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is

recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of

the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,

as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from a related company and a
director, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the

recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future

cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30
days.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's

original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an

equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, accruals,
deposits received and other payables, amounts due to a
director and related companies, loan from a director and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at
the higher of:

()  the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,

contingent liabilities and contingent assets”; and

(i)  the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortization recognized over the guarantee

period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (accounting policies applied
until 31 March 2018) (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration

received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

or payable is recognised in profit or loss.
Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statements of financial
position when both of the following conditions are satisfied: (i)
the Group has a legal right to set off the recognised amounts
and the legal right is currently enforceable; and (i) the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the

financial asset and settle the financial liability simultaneously.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XEETBER(E)

(continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Emolument shares

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a

corresponding increase in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative

expense reflects the revised estimate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the

future.
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant

effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Judgements in determining the accounting policy for the
acquisition of HTIFH

Note 43 describe the acquisition of HTIFH from Hao Tian
Development (the “Acquisition”) by using acquisition method
in accordance with HKFRS 3. The Acquisition requires
judgement by the directors of the Company in determining
the appropriate accounting policy to apply with.

In making their judgement, the directors of the Company
consider the detailed criteria for acquisition method set out in
HKFRS 3 and in particular, whether the Acquisition has
adequate business substance.

With a view to developing financial services and securities
businesses in Hong Kong, the Acquisition allowed the Group
to develop a new line of business in the financial service and
money lending sectors and diversify the businesses of the

Group.

4.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are described below.
Impairment of financial assets

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade
receivables, loan receivables, finance lease receivables and
other receivables by assessing the ECLs. This requires the use
of estimates and judgements. ECLs are based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at the end of
reporting period. Where the estimation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will affect the carrying
amounts of accounts receivable and thus the impairment loss

in the period in which such estimate is changed.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Management
judgment is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event such as any
assets have become obsolete or idle, has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable;
(ii) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal or value in use which is estimated based
upon the continue use of the asset in the business; and (iii)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections. Changing the judgment and
estimations adopted by management in assessing
impairment, including the estimated resale values with
reference to the historical disposal values or second-hand
market price of the assets and the estimated future cash flows
generating from the property, plant and equipment with
reference to the historical and expected rental income from
leasing for assets in use, could affect the recoverable amounts
used in the impairment test and as a result affect the Group's
financial position and results of operations. As at 31 March
2019, the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
is approximately HK$243,860,000 (2018: HK$285,977,000). In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, as the carrying
value of the property, plant and equipment is higher than the
recoverable amount, hence HK$307,000 (2018: HK$4,000,000)
impairment loss has been provided during the year ended 31
March 2019.

4.

BEREFHHE R &G (E)
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

In impairment testing, the Group determines the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets
belong. Determining whether impairment needs to be
provided requires an estimation of future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash generating units. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or
a change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows, a material impairment

loss may arise.
Impairment of intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amount of the intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that they have suffered an
impairment loss respectively. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the intangible assets are estimated in

order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

5. REVENUE 5. KA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA :
2019 2018
—E-NF —E—)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
Revenue from contract with customers: EEAHZHMA
Sale of machinery and spare parts HEWW RERZ N 46,163 14,211
Sale of rental machinery $HE M S 8,597 32,551
Transportation service income Eag RIBWA 1,549 1,237
Other service income HAb RSN 7,991 12,106
Commission income generated from o ERBLHLLES
commodities, futures and ZRE WA
securities brokerage 1,305 =
Revenue from other sources H it FR 2 WA
Rental income from leasing of machinery R B A E# w2 & WA 78,033 75,231
Rental income from sub-leasing R BB 2 HE A
of machinery 20,076 30,533
Interest income generated from B EE 4 2 A2 WA
money lending 12,804 -
176,518 165,869
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

5. WA(E)
BEEGH2ZBA

(i) DEURAEH

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 T NF=A=1+—HIFE
Trading of
construction Provision of
machinery, commodities,
spare parts  Provision of futures and
and repair and  Provision of securities
construction  maintenance transportation brokerage
Segments materials service services service Total
BERE RtEm
BREAR  RESEBR HERES
28 BRENMBHEE RERY RHEEGRYK BER® 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THERT TR TE TER
Sale of machinery HERMRER
and spare parts s 46,163 - - - 46,163
Sale of rental machinery ~ $HEH S HM 8,597 - - - 8,597
Transportation service BRREKA
income - - 1,549 - 1,549
Other service income HRISWA - 7,991 - - 7,991
Commission income A B &5
generated from RiER
commodities, futures and &M A
securities brokerage - - - 1,305 1,305
Total revenue from EFAN 2Bl A
contract with customers 54,760 7,991 1,549 1,305 65,605
Geographical markets B
Hong Kong BB 54,680 7,451 1,528 1,305 64,964
Macau P 80 540 21 - 641
Total revenue from EFAN 2Bl A
contract with customers 54,760 7,991 1,549 1,305 65,605
Timing of revenue WA RRE
recognition
At a point in time RE—FE 2 54,760 7,991 1,549 1,305 65,605
Over time 8 B P - - - - -
Total revenue from BEEAHNZERA
contract with customers 54,760 7,991 1,549 1,305 65,605
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(ii)

Contract liabilities

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate
amount of the transaction price allocated to the
performance obligations that are unsatisfied as of the
end of the reporting period. The Group expects the
transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
performance obligations will be recognised as revenue

when the Group transfers goods to the customer.

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received
to deliver machinery and spare parts. The decrease in
contract liabilities as at 31 March 2019 was mainly due
to the decrease in short-term advances received from
customers in relation to the sales of machinery and

spare parts at the end of the year.

5.

LONE))

BEFEHNZBA(E)

(ii)

BHERE

EBHABREIEERBEREHRKE
ReBROBEZRSERER A&H
BHOREERERBHNREZXRHER
BRAKEERER TEPREERR
N

BHRAEEBEAR MW REAZ4m
WERZEHBAR - RZFE—NF=A
=+—H GHEBERLEZHNER
HEERBRERS MRS S WEZ
RHAEATUR A o

Contract
liabilities
BRHEE
HK$'000
FH&T
At 1 April 2018 — HKFRS 15 R-Z—N\EWNA—H — FEVERSE
HERIZE 155% 1,951
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of HFERNERERFEI T AGLHEE
recognising revenue during the year that was ZIWABEE LB ER D
included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year (1,951)
Increase in the contract liabilities as a result of AEHE S mATRA A E B
billing in advance of sales of goods AHBEEE N 628
At 31 March 2019 RET=NF=H=w-"H 628
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(iii)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations
is summarised below:

Sale of machinery and spare parts

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the machinery and spare parts.

Sale of rental machinery

Customers obtain control of the machinery and spare
parts when the goods are delivered to and have been
accepted. Revenue is thus recognised at a point in time
basis upon when the customers accepted the machinery
and spare parts. There is generally only one
performance obligation.

Transportation service income

Transportation services are generally provided within
one day. Revenue of transportation service is
recognised at a point in time basis when the customer
obtains control of the services. There is generally only
one performance obligation.

Other service income

Other service income which generated from repair and
maintenance services which are generally provided
within one day. Revenue of other service income is
recognised at a point in time basis when the customer
obtains control of the services. There is generally only
one performance obligation.

Commission income generated from commodities,
futures and securities brokerage

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in
time when the execution of purchases, sales or other
transaction or services by the Group on behalf of its
clients at an agreed rate.
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B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

6. DEHER

Information reported to the chief executive officer, being the D AL B R KTk 3 B R 2R (A 17 B AR &k (BD

chief operating decision maker ("CODM"), for the purposes

of resource allocation and assessment of segment

ITBLERRA(ZELERRAD)Z2®RZ
BERETEAEEZXBBIE -

performance focuses on the nature of the operations of the

Group.

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating segments HEEME  BEBEESMBREERESS - K

under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Trading of construction machinery, spare parts

and construction materials

BEEW - BRTHREEDMEE

Rental of construction machinery and provision

of repair and maintenance service

EERWMAE MR E RRERS

Provision of transportation services

RAEER RS

Provision of commodities, future, securities

brokerage and financial services

‘ftEm B8 BFELREBRE

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the CODM

does not regularly review segment assets and liabilities.

SEZAHMERKLEDHLMAT

sale of crawler cranes, aerial platforms, foundation
equipment and construction materials

BEmi - THREIES  MERBREEYHHEE

rent of cranes, aerial platforms and foundation
equipment and provision of repair and maintenance
service for the machinery rented

HE R FEITES R ERE MBS MR M
HE MR EIRTS

provision of transportation service including local
container delivery, site construction delivery and
heavy machinery delivery

REERRY R MEEERRE - MBREEE
Bl AR 75 e R M AR TS

provision of commodities, future, securities brokerage
service and property mortgage loans, machinery loans
and personal loans service

RERR BE BHECRBEMERIEER  #
WE R ABANE KRS

HARET2EERRALETREHMDAEER
B BUERIDHEERER
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. AHFERE)
Segment revenue and results DEBAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results AT AREBE R HEREEDFE D2 A
by reportable and operating segment. REBEDHT
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE-ZE-—NF=ZA=1+—HLFE
Trading of Rental of Provision of
construction construction commodities,
machinery, machinery future,
spare parts  and provision securities
and  of repair and Provision of brokerage
construction ~ maintenance  transportation  and financial
material service services services Total
B EEHW Rt
BRZHR HEk fm B
BEMH RUEER Rt BERE
HE RERH EaR% RERRY b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TR TET
Revenue KA
From external customers RESNBRP 54,760 106,100 1,549 14,109 176,518
Segment profit (loss) DEEF (BE) (268) 6,001 (1,121) (6,987) (2,375)
Other income, other gains HipgA ~ Efth
and losses KaRER 16,565
Finance costs BN (3,380)
Corporate expenses NG 53 (22,873)
Share of profit of joint ventures ~ D{A& & %G H 5,453
Loss before taxation BRI IS (6,610)
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

Trading of
construction
machinery,
spare parts
and

construction

PEER(E)
DERAREE (B)
HE—F-—N\F=H=+—HIFE

Rental of
construction
machinery
and provision
of repair and Provision of

maintenance transportation

materials service services Total
FREEHE - SRR
HRAZHR HER
YR Rt ER IRt
HE RERTS Eh AR R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT AT T
Revenue WA
From external customers R BAINEIEE 46,762 117,870 1,237 165,869
Segment profit (loss) D EB A (E18) 6,017 743 (667) 6,093
Other income, other gains  E Al A « E iz
and losses KR 525
Finance costs & KA (3,420)
Corporate expenses NaElIFZ (19,123)
Loss before taxation KRR Es 1B (15,925)
The accounting policies of the reportable and operating EETECREAREE

segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies.

Segment profit (loss) represent the profit earned by or loss

from each segment without allocation of certain other

income, other gains and losses, certain finance costs and

corporate expenses. This is the measure reported to the

CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

BRAT HE LD
FEIBER B - 28N (BHR) EE 2 MER
DEETEMKA - Eftlas REE - & TR
BRALR AR ZER TR 5 M 3 E
EZER - WRAROEERMFHRERTE
BEARAREZIN °
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. AHFERE)
Other segment information Hitt o #MEH
For the year ended 31 March 2019 HE-_T—AF=A=+—HLEE
Trading of Rental of Provision of
construction  construction commodities,
machinery, machinery futures,
spare parts and provision securities
and ofrepairand  Provisionof  brokerage
construction  maintenance transportation  and financial
materials service services services  Unallocated Total
BERN RftEm -
BEMEH - BER HE &%
HRRRR  RESEBR Rt BER
BENMAHE RERY ERRY EREH xE #aR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR ThRT THERT THAT THET THER
Amounts (charged) credited STENEER (NKB)
in the measure of segment STAZEE:
profit or loss:
Depreciation of property, nE - BERXENE
plant and equipment - (34,959) (644) (354) (3,440) (39,397)
Gain on disposal and write-off ~ HERMENE « HE
of property, plant and el
equipment, net - - 52 - - 52
Impairment loss of property, — ¥1%  BiE k&
plant and equipment REEE - (307) - - - (307)
Expected credit loss on SRAE S
financial assets [FERR (511) 700 - (11,749) - (11,560)
Finance lease income BEREMA 1,471 - - - - 1471
Finance costs BERA (149) (4,235) (45) (6) (3,380) (7,815)
Amounts regularly providedto  FHiRE FEE2E
the CODM but notincluded SRR ABRESH
in the measure of segment BREBATEA
profit or loss: kX B
Income tax credit (expense) FEREe (F) (152) 819 1 (515) - 153
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

Other segment information (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Trading of
construction
machinery,
spare parts
and
construction

6. 2WER(GE)

Hitt &R (58)

&

Rental of
construction
machinery
and provision
of repair and
maintenance

ES

Provision of
transportation

—FE-NFE=H=+—HiILFE

materials service services Unallocated Total
FEERHA
FEERHA HER
HATHR REEER et
BEMBIHE RERB ER kB RO Fak
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TET THT THT
Amounts (charged) credited &9 EbE = (H5)
in the measure of segment ~ FFAZ&H ¢
profit or loss:
Depreciation of property, mE - BE RS ETE
plant and equipment (1) (42,436) (733) (1,181) (44,351)
Gain on disposal and write-off & RItEDE - HE
of property, plant and PELL
equipment, net = = 466 o 466
Impairment loss of property, ~ #% - R K& &
plant and equipment REBR = (4,000) = i (4,000)
Allowance for bad and RERREE
doubtful debts - (921) = = (921)
Reversal of allowance for bad %[5 R BR B 155
and doubtful debts - 9,795 g = 9795
Finance lease income BEREWA 673 55 % - 673
Finance costs BB (189) (3.979) (42) (3,420) (7,630)
Amounts regularly provided ~ EHIREFEELE
to the CODM but not REANBRFES H
included in the measure BRERTHA
of segment profit or loss: ks
Income tax credit (expense) PSR & () 1,621 (126) 89 1,815 3,399
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years

contributing over 10% of total revenue of the Group are as

DEER(E)
AREIEZEFZEHR

FRE A AN R BN A HR18 10% 2 BB A
T

follows:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET THT
Customer A EEA
— rental of construction machinery and — BREMREE AR IRE SRS
provision of repair and maintenance MIRERT
service N/ATER" 20,713
Customer B %FB
— trading of construction machinery, —EEEW - ERTHR
spare parts and construction materials BEMEHE N/A 738 18,710
— rental of construction machinery and — BRI E A MRS
provision of repair and maintenance FMARE IRTS
service N/A 18 A 370
— provision of transportation services — R AE R RS N/A T8 A 3
N/A 38 A 19,083
Customer C BFEC
— trading of construction machinery — REMWIHE 18,466 N/A 38 A
— rental of construction machinery and — B E A KRS
provision of repair and maintenance KRB IR
service 451 N/A @ A
18,917 N/ATER
Customer D EFD
— rental of construction machinery and — B E LA IR A (S
provision of repair and maintenance KRB IR
service 19,977 N/A i A
— provision of transportation services — R BB RS 59 N/A 138 A
20,036 N/ATEA!

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the 1

total revenue of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER(E)

Geographical information @&

The Group's revenue from external customers is mainly REBZREBINEFRAETEEEBLURE
derived from customers located in Hong Kong and Macau, BRRFIZER - ATEREPAEEETE

which is determined based on the location of customers.

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHIT
External revenue: SNEBUA -
Hong Kong 55 173,307 159,983
Macau el 3,211 5,886
176,518 165,869
The Group’s non-current assets based on the geographical REBZIRDEE(ERZZEEREAZ
location of the owners of these assets are as follows: HWIBAIE) AT ¢
Non-current assets (Note)
FERBEE ()
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Hong Kong BB 314,069 291,018
Note: Non-current assets excluded interests in joint ventures, loan Mizk: ERBDEETRIEREELE 2 ERE  BRE
receivables, deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries, finance lease FoWENBAR €  MEEESEKRERE
receivables and deferred tax assets. ERIEEE ©
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7. OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HflgA - Httrsm R B8
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Other income HKA
Interest income from bank deposits RITIF KA BUA 48 26
Finance lease income BEHEERA 1,471 673
Rental income from leasing a warehouse RELEHEEEMERREZ
property and a motor vehicle e WA 168 432
Sundry income FETEUA 1,108 1,363
2,795 2,494
Other gains and (losses) Hitl s K (B518)
Net foreign exchange loss SNPE B i8R FB (804) (1,177)
Net gain on disposal and write-off of & KB - BB k&
property, plant and equipment Gy 52 466
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIZIR B AR - (921)
Reversal of allowance for bad and doubtful & [5] 5 552 B #4812 UK EX AR B8 7l &8,
debt and receipt of related interest - 12,961
Compensation received from a customer Bl —R2EFEE 5,229 -
Refund of costs incurred for a litigation FRAARK AN E TR - 2,358
Impairment loss of property, plant and W R MR EREEE
equipment (307) (4,000)
Change in fair value of financial assets AAFERTE BBt A%
at fair value through profit and loss ZEeMEEZ AT EZS 17,927 -
22,097 9,687
24,892 12,181
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMK
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Interest on borrowings BEHNS 6,148 6,570
Finance lease interest RERER S 317 326
Director's loan interest SEFERFE 1,350 734
7,815 7,630
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 9. EX THAIREEME
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EERTHRERMS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and ENSENEESRITHAS  MemT :

chief executive were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BE_Z-NF=ZA=+-—HLFE

Retirement

Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
HeER EBIARER
we HibER sHEIER Pk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
F&T FHET F&ET F&T
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James iy e - 1,989 18 2,007
Dr. Zhiliang Ou BN - = = =
Mr. Fok Chi Tak EEEmiE - 2,496 18 2,514
Sub-total Nt - 4,485 36 4,521
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua TR A 120 - - 120
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong ERREE 120 - - 120
Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot e 120 - - 120
Sub-total Nt 360 - - 360
Chief executive THAR
Mr. Zhou Yong (Note 1) BB L (1) - 821 9 830
Mr. Liu Xiaodong (Note 2) IR 54 (Kt 2) - 853 8 861
Mr. Gao Zhangpeng = = M5 5 A (FfFEE3)
(Note 3) - 125 - 125
Sub-total AN - 1,799 17 1,816
Total &5 360 6,284 58] 6,697
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

9.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(continued)

9.

For the year ended 31 March 2018
HE_T - \F=A=1+—HILFE

EE  THRBREEME (B)

ESRTHRARNE (E)

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
Hak RIREA
we HmEA FTEI R 4azg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET T T
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James BRRE oA 51 1,989 21 2,061
Dr. Zhiliang Ou BGseE = = > >
Mr. Fok Chi Tak EEEEE = 1,872 14 1,886
Sub-total /et 51 3,861 35 3,947
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua TRESL A 120 - - 120
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong ERREE 120 - - 120
Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot X 120 - - 120
Sub-total AN 360 = = 360
Chief executive THAEAR
Mr. Zhou Yong (Note 1) BB &L (1) = 1,135 12 1,147
Sub-total /NEt - (%85 12 1,147
Total A&t 411 4,996 47 5,454
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(continued)

Notes:

)

Mr. Zhou Yong was appointed as chief executive of the Company
with effect from 15 August 2017 and resigned as chief executive of
the Company with effect from 15 September 2018.

Mr. Liu Xiaodong was appointed as chief executive of the Company
with effect from 26 September 2018 and resigned as chief executive
of the Company with effect from 9 January 2019.

Mr. Gao Zhangpeng was appointed as chief executive of the
Company with effect from 1 March 2019.

The executive directors’ emoluments were for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments were for
their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

EE  THRBREEME (B)

ESRTRARNE (E)

BT -

M FAEAEEZERARBAZTBAH 8=F
—tFNATHEBRER  ABERRFZITH
BE BT/ \FNLATHABEREXR -

@ BRRELBECERADAZIRAR =2
—NFEAAZHABRER  WRERDR 2T
B A-F-AF—ARBRER-

B EBEBELREEAAAAZAREH 6-F
—NEZA—BRER -

@ HOTEFZHEAREAEEARTARLEERE
TSF IR e AR 75 T 275

(6 BUFATEFZMEARSEEIARAZES
PR B9 AR TS T 215

) BEE-AFER_ZE-NF=ZA=+—HLHF

B BE S EMESRTRAKEHEXAR
WEEMME 2 25 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 9. EE THEBREEME (&)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Employees’ emoluments EEMS
The five highest paid individuals included two (2018: two) HEZZ-NE=-A=1+—HIEFE 1E%
directors and two (2018: one) chief executives for the year SEALHR BEREZ(ZZE—/\F : WA)
ended 31 March 2019, whose emoluments are included in the EEEMBEETHRAEB(ZE—NF: —
above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2018: two) B) HMESZHBHR EX - BB —BAL
individual are as follows: —E-N\F :WMBAD)ZBE0T :
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET—)\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Salaries, allowances and benefits e R RET 715 1,537
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR RIEFIEH 2 2k 18 30
733 1,567
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BENTET5IE8EE 2 A :
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\E
Number of Number of
employee employee
BEA™ EE A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2% 1,000,000 7T 1 2
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

10. TAXATION 10. BB

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Hong Kong: BB
Current tax BNVERRL IR 614 493
Under (Over) provision in prior years BEFERETE GRBERE) 214 (2,795)
828 (2,302)
Deferred tax credit EREFL B (981) (1,097)
Income tax credit FriSHiE % (153) (3,399)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

HEBF B
16.5% & o

15 12 W M8 F 2 5 R AR Bl A 2

AFEEHEESGEREEMEEKERA
ZBRIERTER 2 HERINT ¢

2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FH&TT
Loss before taxation B F Al 5 18 (6,610) (15,925)
Taxation at Hong Kong Profits BB BHERBE16.5%51F
Tax rate of 16.5% (1,091) (2,628)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible DRI 2 2 RIS 2
for tax purpose 3,822 1,952
Tax effect of income not taxable BARMBA 2 FRE 2
for tax purpose (2,976) (152)
Under (Over) provision in prior years BEFERETE (BRERE) 147 (2,795)
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiary REMBEERES 2
operating in other jurisdiction TRHXZE (6) (7)
Others HAith (49) 231
Income tax credit Frigiiie (153) (3,399)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

11.

12.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR 11. FAEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT
Loss for the year is arrived FEREE RGBT IREBIER
at after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration ZERTEN & 921 1,000
Amortisation of intangible assets B E R 601 -
Depreciation of property, plant and Mz - BERREBTE
equipment 39,397 44 351
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ##:R AR T HFEMR A 49,528 30,926
Minimum lease payment in respect of TFEIE 2 SIEHEERRK
— Land and buildings — T REF 3,055 1,574
— Machinery — M 10,791 22,164
Staff costs: BTRA :
Directors’ and chief executive's BERITHREH MG
emoluments 6,697 5,454
Other staff costs H 8 TR
— Salaries and other benefits — Fre REMER 50,278 53,154
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIREFETEIER
contributions 1,878 1,863
58,853 60,471

DIVIDEND

12. BE

No dividend was paid or proposed by the directors of the

Company for both years nor has any dividend been proposed

since the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

13. BREE

ARREBANBIEERERBRIIERIATE

owners of the Company is based on the following data: BEtHE -
2019 2018
“®-hE —ZN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Loss BB
Loss for the purpose of basic loss per share  FLEtE FREAEIE 2 E51E
(loss for the year attributable to owners of (A FIHEA AEGFRNER)
the Company) (6,452) (12,528)
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
‘000 ‘000
TR TH&
(restated)
(r5=31))
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary M ESREREEZ
shares for the purpose of basic loss TR NAE T 15 £
earning per share 3,263,756 2,405,272

No diluted loss per share were presented as there were no

potential ordinary shares in issue for years ended 31 March

2019 and 2018.

HREBE_T-—NFR_E-—N\F=A=+—
BUEFESEDHTEELBR  RUEZS

BREEEE -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERRE
Leasehold Furniture
land and Leasehold and Motor
building improvements Machinery equipment vehicles Total
HETHRET HE%E H BRRRE RE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT THx THx TiEx Tix

COST A
At 1 April 2017 R=E—tFNA—-A 67,380 2119 411,799 1,204 16,613 499,115
Additions NE 6,704 - 59,264 197 631 66,796
Disposals & - 1 = = 2,072) 2,072)
Reclassification to inventories ENABERE - = (56,797) = = (56,797)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\¥=R=+-H 74,084 2119 414,266 1,401 15172 507,042
Additions NE 387 - 66,634 56 463 67,540
Additions from acquisiton of R BARMAZ

subsidiaries - 1,342 - 2,059 = 3,401
Disposals HE - (545) - (350) (408) (1,303)
Reclassification to inventories ~ EHPEERE - - (17,770) L = (17,770)
Reclassification to asset classified E# A EE 18 A#E

as held for sales hEEE (73.271) - - - - (73.271)
At 31 March 2019 R-B-NE=RA=t-H 1,200 2,916 463,130 3,166 15,227 485,639
DEPRECIATION AND FERAEE

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2017 RZZ—-t£MA—-H 1,136 924 198,949 932 12,691 214,632
Charge for the year AEERX 2,257 150 40,104 136 1,704 44,351
Eliminated on disposals R E B = E = £ (1,875) (1,875)
Reclassification to inventories ~ EFAEEEE - - (40,043) = = (40,043)
Impairment loss on property, nE - BEREERESS

plant and equipment - - 4,000 - - 4,000
At 31 March 2018 R=E-\¥=R=+-H 3393 1,074 203,010 1,068 12,520 221,065
Charge for the year REERR 2,461 199 34,887 493 1,357 39,397
Eliminated on disposals REERHH = = = (124) (408) (532)
Reclassification to inventories ~ EFPEEHFE - - (13,230) = = (13,230
Impairment loss on property, 0% BEREERESR

plant and equipment - - 307 - - 307
Reclassification to asset classified EHHEENBARE

as held for sales HEEE (5,228) = 4 = - (5,228)
At 31 March 2019 R=E-h&E=B=t-H 626 1,273 224,974 1,437 13,469 241,779
CARRYING AMOUNTS BHE
At 31 March 2019 R=E-h&E=R=t-H 574 1,643 238,156 1,729 1,758 243,860
At 31 March 2018 R=_E-\¥=F=t-H 70,691 1,045 211,256 333 2,652 285,977

166 Annual Report 25 2018/19



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The carrying value of machinery and motor vehicles includes
amount of HK$146,736,000 and HK$1,692,000 (2018:
HK$151,864,000 and HK$2,537,000) in respect of assets held
under finance lease arrangement, respectively. The liabilities
arising from these finance lease arrangements were either
classified as borrowings or obligations under finance leases as
at end of the reporting period. During the year ended 31
March 2019, HK$307,000 (2018: HK$4,000,000) impairment
loss has been recognised for certain of machinery.

The Group has pledged leasehold land and buildings with a
carrying amount of HK$574,000 (2018: HK$596,000) to secure
bank borrowings of the Group.

14. W% BENRKRE(E)

e KT8 2 BREE R IR R R s L A E Bk
A ZEERBZ 25D R1146,736,0008 7T K&
1,692,000 7T (= Z — J\4F : 151,864,000 7T
%.2,537,000/7C) - R EAAR - ZSMEMR
EREAZABRDEREBEENRERER
E-BHE_T—NF=A=+—HLtFE" E
BL T A R SRR (B B 48 307,000 0 (=&
—\4F : 4,000,000 7T) °

ANEE D HEIRBREES74,0008 7T ( — 2 — )\ ¢
596,000/ 7T) 2 A E + i RIEFLARGEARER
ZIRITEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B EE
Securities
Customer brokerage
relationship licenses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET THET THETT
COST RS
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 RZE—tFMWA—H "
and 1 April 2018 —E-N\F=A=+—H
—E-N\FHWA—H = = e
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BB BB R ) 12,020 5,000 17,020
At 31 March 2019 R=-ZF-—NhF=RA=+—8H 12,020 5,000 17,020
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Z&t+#éH
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 RZZE—tFMHA—R -
and 1 April 2018 ==
kR=ZZ—-N\EmA—H — = —
Charge for the year REEZRR 601 - 601
At 31 March 2019 R==—hF=H=1+—H 601 - 601
NET BOOK VALUE BRENRE
At 31 March 2019 R-EB-hF=A=+-—H 11,419 5,000 16,419
At 31 March 2018 N = e F] - = =
Notes: Btk
(i) Approximately HK$17,020,000 of the total amounts represents (i) A2 FAA17,020,00078 T8 A 5 E3E B W B R R
amount paid for the customer relationship and securities brokerage BEREmMERERAAMBATPBRRESK
licenses acquired by the Group, which amounted to approximately LR Z B 25D 5I412,020,0005 7T K 49
HK$12,020,000 and approximately HK$5,000,000 respectively, 5,000,000/8 7T °
through the acquisition of Hao Tian International Financial Holdings
Limited.
The recoverable amount of intangible asset has been determined mEEEz IRE SR DREBEABESEEE
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow E o ZEtEAERENE R EMILERFHNG
projections based on financial budgets approved by management REZReRERA  BRERI107% - AFE
covering a five-year period with a discount rate of 10.7%. Cash RenBR3I%IERTME - FREEFEES—
flows after five-year period are extrapolated at 3% growth rate. FARBRRZARFEWARENE - THREELH
Another key assumption for the value in use calculation is the ERELERERATSLERMETE -

budgeted revenue and gross margin, which is determined based
on the units’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

16. GOODWILL 16. BE
2019 2018
ZE-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
The amount arises on acquisition of: WHELA NIBEB FTEL S ¢
Hao Tian International Financial SRR SBIZERERA
Holdings Limited
— Original amount —REER 46,417 =
— Impairment loss — BEEE = =
Total carrying amount FRmE&E 46,417 =

The recoverable amount of Hao Tian International Financial
Holdings Limited (“HTIFH") has been determined based on a
value in use calculation prepared by an independent valuer,
Crowe Horwath First Trust Appraisal Pte Ltd. That calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period with a
discount rate of 10.7%.

Cash flows after the five-year period are extrapolated at 3%
growth rate. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculation is the budgeted revenue and gross margin, which
is determined based on the unit's past performance and

management'’s expectations for the market development.

As at 31 March 2019, the recoverable amount as determined
by the market price of HTIFH exceeds its carrying amount, no

further impairment is required.

ZRER S BIERBR AR (T2 RER S RIZE
B% 1) Z AT 4R (B £ %8 T E A 78 37 ik {8 Bl Crowe
Horwath First Trust Appraisal Pte Ltd FT 4R 2E
REBEZGHEERE - J:ﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬁi‘“ﬁﬁﬁﬁt
HEARIRFN107% st E 2 AEVMRBEMSZ
Rer=Taal -

hERZBAGREREREREI% - HERE
REEZS —EHIZRIXREEWE RER
T DRZBMBECRRREREE AT S
R Z FAHEETE o

R-ZB-NF=HA=+—0 REXEKELH
R f“ EZAIWE e FREREREE %)
A —FRE
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

7. REELE I ES

2019

S
HK$'000
T

Share of net assets PMEEBEFE 165,387

As at 31 March 2019, particulars of the joint ventures were as

RIB-NF=A=+—H GELEZFE

follows: LU
Form of Percentage
business Place of of ownership
structure incorporation interest Principal activities
1EFERE
EBEBEK o 11 B 52 3t B EZEIL FEEHK
Riverwood China Growth Fund Incorporated Cayman Island 51.58% Investment holdings
FEAR L MERS REER
ERREERERRE Incorporated PRC 35% Investment holdings
E2EERERATA FE AR SZ H REER
Summarised financial information of the joint EhECHBEERME

ventures

Set out below are the summarised financial information of
Riverwood China Growth Fund, extracted from its

management accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019:

AR A Riverwood China Growth Fund 2 81 #%
ERBE A HEEE-_Z—NLE=H
=+—HIEFECZEEERR :

2019
—Z2-nf
HK$'000
FHT

Current assets mMENEE
Current liabilities mENAE

319,786
6,228

Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year FREE R 2HEMAY £ (27,838)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17. REELEZER (B)
Summarised financial information of the joint RELECHBENBE(E)
ventures (continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information PG BEHNBERGA M BHRRARER
to the carrying amount of the investment in Riverwood China Riverwood China Growth Fund# & BRI B 2
Growth Fund recognised in the consolidated financial IR -
statements:
2019
—Z2-hE
HK$'000
FET
Equity attributable to the owners BB AEAER 313,558
Proportion of the Group's ownership interests REB FE(E AT A REREZS L1 51.58%
Carrying amount of the Group's investment in A2 B 74 Riverwood China Growth Fund 2
Riverwood China Growth Fund REREE 161,733
Set out below are the summarised financial information of %& NTRELIREEREXREELSEERERA
ZIRMEEREXEREEZESBTEBR A A, extracted from its AlZHBERME Mg HBE -2 —NF
management accounts for the year ended 31 March 2019: ZH=T—RHILFEZEEERR :
2019
—B-NF
HK$'000
THERT
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,611
Current assets MENVE E 9,004
Current liabilities mEEE 176
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year 4 REE & 2 @5 4248 (803)

Annual Report F 3k 2018/19 171



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBFE &R ELEEBR AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17. REELEZER (B)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information LR EARSE R B B R A IS R WA E &
to the carrying amount of the investment in f& % ik B 3% & 2= REZREXREECERARARKRERE
*#%EHE ST E AR A recognised in the consolidated B2 #8K

financial statements:

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
T
Equity attributable to the owners BB NGRS 10,439
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interests AE B RGP Rz 35%
Carrying amount of the Group's investment in AEENTERIREEREXRRERLSER
R EREFRELACERBR AR BRARIZIREREIE 3,654
18. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 18. MEHERWIE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current finance lease receivables BN EARY & AE & e k1 8,004 6,959
Less: Provision for impairment loss R ORES B (900) -
7,104 6,959
Non-current finance lease receivables SERNEARY & HH & e kIR 6,901 9,529
14,005 16,488
Leasing arrangements HEZH
Certain of the Group's machinery are leased out under REEETHRMDBEMEREHE - IAZ
finance leases. All leases are denominated in HK$. The term EMEHABTHE - MEBERI L ZFHN
of finance leases entered into ranges from 2 years to 5 years F2HESF(ZB-NF : 1AAZESF) -

(2018: 1 month to 5 years).
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18. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. BMEHEREWFIE(E)
Amounts receivable under finance leases BMEREET 2 EWFIE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments lease payments
BREBEESK HESRZRE
2019 2018 2019 2018

—E-hEF T NF ZE-hAF ZZT)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T FH&T Tt

Not later than one year TER—%F 8,321 8,042 7,104 6,959
Later than one year and not BN —FRTERESF

later than five years 7,335 10,226 6,901 9,529

15,656 18,268 14,005 16,488

Less: unearned finance income  J& : REREXELE WA (1,651) (1,780) N/AFTERA N/ATEA

Present value of minimum lease EWHFEHE MR ZIRE

payments receivable 14,005 16,488 14,005 16,488
The effective interest rates of the finance leases as at 31 REZE-—NEF=A=+—H  gEHSEZER
March 2019 range from 4.55% to 12.0% per annum (2018: FENFBF455% F12.0% (ZF—/\F :
4.55% to 10.20% per annum). F4.55% % 10.20%) °
There was no unguaranteed residual value in connection with RMEBRR  TEEEASEREHELHN
finance lease arrangements or contingent lease arrangements SAEELRH 2 RERFIREBEEEL D

of the Group that needed to be recorded as at the end of the
reporting period.
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19. LOAN RECEIVABLES 19. EWER
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Non-current: FEBNER -
Secured, fixed-rate loan receivables (Note) & # & Uq & E K R EFX (M) 16,968 -
Less: Allowance for impairment B ORE R (922) =
16,046 -
Current: BIHR -
Secured, fixed-rate loan receivables (Note) A& ¥ & Y B & I K E 2% (B 5F) 67,276 -
Unsecured and guaranteed, fixed-rate I R A BRENKEEFEER
loan receivables 61,913 —
Unsecured and non-guaranteed, fixed-rate IR K £ (R B UL [E & A R E R
loan receivables 24,114 _
Less: Allowance for impairment W RE R (6,044) =
147,259 -
163,305 -
Note: The loan receivables are secured by properties and equity Mt : RERAMER AR 2 W% RIRAZBHEER -

securities held by the borrowers.
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19. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. BERER(E)
Movements on the Group's impairment of loans receivable REEEWEFORE 2 ZEHmT
are as follows:
As at 31 March 2019
R-E-NE=A=1+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—RR EMEER E=RE met
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THER THER THET
Balance at 31 March 2018 RZZ—-\F=A=+—H
as originally presented 2R (EREZ25) = - - -
Impact of adopting HKFRS 9 RANE B RS AER
FoFIE = = = -
Balance at 1 April 2018 RZZE-\FWA—BZ
as restated FEER (&) - - - -
New loans originated FEE N 6,966 - - 6,966
As at 31 March 2019 R=F-—hF=A=+—H 6,966 - - 6,966

In general, loans receivable are considered as default when
the loans receivable or its related installments are overdue by
over 90 days. As at 31 March 2019, loans receivable of HK$Nil
was default under lifetime ECL and a provision of HK$Nil was
provided.

For loans that are not credit-impaired without significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition “Stage 1", ECL
is measured at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime ECL
that result from default events possible within the next 12
months. If a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition is identified (“Stage 2") but not yet deemed to be
credit impaired, ECL is measured based on lifetime ECL. In
general, when loans receivable or its related installments are
overdue by 30 days, there are significant increase in credit
risk. During the year ended 31 March 2019, total provision of
HK$6,923,000 under Stage 1 and Stage 2 was released to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income based on

assessment from ECL model.

—RiME - WEKEREERE S B FE
HB90B AIERERERAEN - R-F
—NE=ZA=+—H REHEHEEBET
BERAZEBERSTEL  YEHEEET
AL ©

2
H A

HRIEEERERBVBEERLREERRIL
mEERM(E—RRDZ2ER  BHREER
BIZAEER AR 1218 A A AT 3 £ E L S5
B 2 HBEMEEBR 2L E - ME %
BERARBHANEERBREZIL I E R
BDEREABELHBEERE  AEHEEE
BEREHABEREEEETE - —Rms - ME
WERSHARR S BN FUa 30 B - EERR
EAEEN - #E=F—hhE=A=+—A1t
FE - REFEREEEEER 276G £k
B I 55 B BR 2 B 4858 6,923,000 75 T E ]
EEAEERER °

== =)
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20. INVENTORIES 20. 78
2018
ZE-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T
Machinery HEA 559
Spare parts HRZMH 1,333
Construction materials ZEEYEL 12,518
14,410
21. TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. ESREWFIE
2018
—E-NEF S ANCS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT
Trade receivables from clients arising from LA THEEMEERETFZE S
JEWFRIE
— Rental income from construction — BEEBER 2B A
machinery business 57,229
— Trading and provision of other service — MW EREE MEEE MRS
from construction machinery 29,527
— Securities brokerage — AL =
Margin and other trade related deposits LATRIE B PTE A 2 8848 R I T5#hE
with brokers and financial institutions ZREBEBERAME ZE@ZS
arising from
— futures brokerage — e =
Less: Allowance for impairment R E R (18,558) (5,161)
81,595

For those cash commodities and securities trading clients, it
normally takes two to three days to settle after trade date of
those transactions. These outstanding unsettled trades due

from clients are reported as trade receivables from clients. B ZEYKRIA -

The margin clients of the commodities and securities
brokerage business are required to pledge their shares to the

Group for credit facilities for securities trading.

The settlement terms of trade receivables from clearing

houses are usually one to two days after the trade date. SHHE—ZmMA -
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables from
client arising from construction machinery business, presented
based on invoice dates net of allowance for impairment at the

end of the reporting period:

B 5 rRE ()

AT BRBEMREERMEBMELERER
F 2B 5 RWIAE (R RERE) RERAH
252 R

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET THBT

0-30 days 0&30H 8,712 37,755
31-90 days 31E90H 13,680 20,408
91-180 days 91% 180 H 2,403 8,059
181-365 days 181 E 365 H 3,135 13,496
Over 365 days 365 HLA E 5,981 1,877
33,911 81,595

Included in the Group's trade receivable balances were
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$43,840,000
which were past due for which the Group had not provided
for allowance for bad and doubtful debts as at 31 March 2018.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no further provision is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.

Trade receivables from cash and margin clients arising from
the commodities and securities brokerage business are
repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date. No
aging analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of directors, the
aging analysis does not provide additional value in view of
the nature of commodities and securities dealing business.
The amount of credit facilities granted to margin clients is
determined by the discounted market value of the collateral
securities accepted by the Group. As at 31 March 2019, the
total value of securities pledged as collateral in respect of the
margin loans was approximately HK$147,424,000 (2018: HK$
Nil) based on the market value of the securities as at the end

of the reporting period.

R-ZF-\F=A=1+—H rEEZE5E
WREEHREREEAHEERELEER
43,840,00078 7T 2 FE U R 3R - AN 5% B30 48 Bt %
FRFHRERERE R - REBERLR - A2F
EERRBARNEERIELE—TBE R
AREEERYEEREE  HWAERDIRR
A S o

BmkESEEEBMEERERE RRESR
BEPZESREFIRANGEE HRIZERIE
& BEERRBARBEREIN - RESER
BmREFRFEHIUE - FREDITTRER
HEIMEE RTIFRESEFPZEERESH
TREAEBREAERRES 2 TEMERE
E-RIZZE-NF=A=1+—H  REFNRK
SHMRzMEFE  CEREARESERZ
HH 2 BHBER R 147,424,008 T (= F
—N\E: FHT) °
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. EZEWRIEE)
Credits are extended to brokerage clients on a case-by-case KL EPZEEEAREEP 2B ER
basis in accordance with the financial status of clients such as TUER BEEPZMBHR  XFR8
their financial conditions, trading records, business profile EBEA RAER T AEE 2 m o EFR
and collateral available to the Group. Clients trading in mEBEURBAEEERESRESHEZE
commodities and obtaining securities margin financing from PHBBFTAEB 2REFSHE - L@ mm
the Group are required to observe the Group’s margin T REEJNAZNVFIRES  BERFZ
policies. For commodities, initial margins are required before FEARFERTEZRESKF -
trading and thereafter clients are required to keep the equity
position at a prescribed maintenance margin level.
Upon application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the Group RZZE—N\FHA—HERBESMBIHREER
applies simplified approach to provide for ECL prescribed by FoIE - NEBEERBMIC A EREBMER
HKFRS 9. To measure the ECL of trade receivables, trade ERBEIFRE 2 BREEFIEHERE -
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk R BEZRKREEREEREE B5E
characteristics. The ECL of trade receivables as at 1 April 2018 WHRIEEBEREGEERESH S - ERNR
(upon the application of HKFRS 9) and 31 March 2019 was SHF 2 BERENZS  BEHRRFER-Z
approximately HK$14,185,000 and HK$18,558,000 respectively —NFOA-—B(ERABEMBREERE?
based on the counterparties’ past repayment history. The REIRZE-NF=A=+—BzRHEE
estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical /&5 18 7 Bl 40 & 14,185,000 7% 7T K& 18,558,000 7
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors T o fhETET R R IR R E W AR RIERT F AN 2
and study of other corporates’ default and recovery data from BEBRENRURBB EETFEES M
international credit-rating agencies and are adjusted for ERHREWEE ZAEMERT  YHBA
forward-looking information that is available without undue RN ZE 2 RS 7)1 BT 45 2 RTBE MR & R
cost or effort. fEL A% -
Movement in the loss allowance for impairment of BESRUREZRERESEES
trade receivables
2019 2018
—¥-hF =T N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET TR
At beginning of the year FH) 5,161 16,339
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 RMBEBA B MELERNE T2 E 9,024 -
14,185 16,339
Impairment losses recognised O R A E R 5,294 921
Amount written-off as uncollectible AT W B FiT 4 6 < 78 (921) (3,214)
Recovery of bad debts Y B35 AR = (8,885)
At end of the year FR 18,558 5,161
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22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 22. HtEEWRIE - RERFEMNRE
PREPAYMENTS
2019 2018
—®-hEF —FNF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FH&TT
Non-current: FERH
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHT B A | 2 7T (Mizk)
(Note) - 100,000
Deposits for acquisition of property, WiEME - BB RRBZR £
plant and equipment 2,719 414
2,719 100,414
Current: mE :
Other receivables H fth & U 5K 71 26
Deposits e 3,516 2,749
Prepayments TRfTEIE 1,494 1,286
Less: Allowance for impairment R R E R (581) -
4,500 4,061
Note: On 28 March 2018, the Group entered into a sales and purchase et : R=E—N\E=ZA=-+N\B ' FEEEKXRQFH
agreement with Hao Tian Development Group Limited (“HTDGL"), HERAREREREEARAG([2RER])
the Company’s intermediate holding company, to purchase the I E & - LAER 2R & 150,000,000 7 7T K& 3%
entire issued share capital of Hao Tian International Financial 7 125,000,000 IR A2 FIAR 1 48 B 2 KB & m %
Holdings Limited for a cash consideration of HK$150,000,000 and BAERARZIEHTHRA([EEWEEHE]) -

issue of 125,000,000 shares of the Company’s shares (the
“Proposed Acquisition”).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group placed a deposit of RZB-—N\F=ZA=+—0  xEEREXEE

HK$100,000,000 to HTDGL as a refundable deposit for the X &1 100,000,000 8 TTE A EE K ES=1E 2 7]

Proposed Acquisition. RBFTR

The Proposed Acquisition was completed on 13 December 2018. EBEWBEEA-—Z— \F+-_B+=HELK=
B o
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23.

24.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

UAFEFEAHSLHABRE S
BMEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —FN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Financial assets at FVTPL AFEFEBHBEFABRZ
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%
Listed equity instrument rFERTA 114,376 =

As of 31 March 2019, the Group held 401,320,000 shares in
China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited (Stock
code: 412) as financial assets designated at FVTPL.

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash

Pledged bank deposits were pledged to banks to secure
bank borrowings granted to the Group as set out in note 29
and interest bearing at a prevailing market rate of 0.59% per

annum (2018: 0.52% per annum).

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.0001% to 0.0021% (2018: 0.0003% to 0.0046%)

per annum.
Bank balances, trust and segregated accounts

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
authorised institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from its
normal course of business. The Group has classified the
clients’ monies as bank balances, trust and segregated
accounts under the current assets section of the consolidated
statement of financial position and recognised the
corresponding trade payables (note 26) to respective clients
on the grounds that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation
of clients’ monies. The clients’ monies as bank balances, trust
and segregated accounts is restricted and governed by the
Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the

Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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25. A DISPOSAL COMPANY CLASSIFIED AS HELD

FOR SALE

Chim Kee Crane Company Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, engaged in investment of
leasehold land in Hong Kong. In March 2019, the Group
entered into agreements for the disposal of its entire interests
in Chim Kee Crane Company Limited for an aggregate
consideration of HK$100,000,000 (the “Disposal”).
Accordingly, the assets and liabilities attributable to Chim
Kee Crane Company Limited, as included in the Group's
rental of construction machinery and provision of repair and
maintenance service for segment reporting purposes, had
been classified as assets and liabilities held for sale and were
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2019. By reference to the
sales consideration and the carrying value of Chim Kee Crane
Company Limited as at 31 March 2019, no impairment loss
was recorded for the year ended 31 March 2019. The Disposal
was completed in April 2019.

25. PEARBEHEZ —MIHEAT

RAREEZENB AR GTCRERGR AR
RNEBNRERERE L HERS - N_T—NF
=R » REE AR (E 100,000,0008 T H &
HRGRRERAR ARz ER([HES
BT - B - AHBIRE B MR
SEEERREE U RIBHEE RIRERBA
Rz hBRERERARELEERBEES
BARBELHEZEERAR URZT—NF
Z A=+ —RAZEGEEMBRARANERZS -
KBEHEREBRODREREGRARR-S
—NF=A=+—HZEEE BEREE=
T NF=A=+—HILFEHESEANEEE
B HEFER-_Z—NEWN ALK °

The major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held for RZZ—NE=A=+—H 2EARZELE
sale as at 31 March 2019 were as follows: CEERBBZEESBOT

2019
—B-hEF
HK$'000
FBT
Property, plant & equipment M - BRE &RE 68,043
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments Hib U GRIA « ke RIBH 8 1
Bank balances and cash RITEHR NS 42
Total assets classified as held for sale DEABELEE CEERAE 68,086
Creditors and accruals N ERR R ERTE A 40
Total liabilities classified as held for sale SERFELE 2 AERE 40
Net assets BEFRE 68,046
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26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. EZENRIR
2019 2018
—E-hEF —T)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Margin and other deposits payable to A BEMBFELEEZ
clients arising from commodities, ENEPZzRES REMIZE
futures and securities brokerage 7,971 -
Trade payables to brokers and clearing - BEMBSCLRES
houses arising from commodities, MR RERFT 2 B S ENFIA
futures and securities brokerage 116 -
Trade payables arising from construction ERERW REREYRHEEE Y
machinery and sales of construction B S ENFKIA
materials 5,922 21,980
14,009 21,980

The settlement terms of payable to brokers, clearing houses
and securities trading clients from the ordinary course of
business of brokerage in securities range from two to three
days after the trade date of those transactions. Margin and
other deposits received from clients for their trading of

commodities and futures contracts were payable on demand.

Trade payables arising from construction machinery and sales
of construction materials business comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purchases. The normal credit period

taken for trade purchases is 0-45 days.
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27.

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

26. ESENREGE)

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables arising from REER RS BIR B B SRR E R E
construction machinery and sale of construction materials EBELECESRNFIBEREZANZ5| 20K
business at the end of the reporting period presented based AT

on the invoice date is as follows:

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET TET

0-30 days 0Z230H 1,581 17,183
31-60 days 312 60H 1,724 2,691
61-180 days 61%E180H 2,058 1,963
181-365 days 181 & 365H 151 -
Over 365 days 365 AL 408 143
5,922 21,980

ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER  27. FEFtER - ERe R EMENRKIE

PAYABLES

2019 2018
—®-hE —B-N\fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Accruals e E A 6,470 4,908
Deposit received 2ikiEe 10,238 7,043
Other payable H At e FRIE 905 1,088
17,613 13,039

Note: As at 31 March 2019, HK$2,084,000 (2018: HK$734,000) represented Mz : R=FT—AF=A=1+—H -2084,000%L(=
interest payable to a director. T— )\ : 734,000/ 7T) lEN —BEEFS -
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28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED 28.
COMPANIES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO
FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNT DUE TO AN
INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY/
AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO A DIRECTOR/LOAN
FROM A DIRECTOR

Amounts due from a related company and a director

The amounts are interest-free, unsecured and are repayable
on demand.

Details of amounts due from a related company and a
director, which are non-trade nature, are as follows:

P NEE LN BRIE BN E
AL RRE BN —EhEER
DNRFE W N - BEEXK
B/ RE-REBZEX

W —BREARR —EESEHA
ZEFARRE  BIERRAREREER -
ER—REERAR R —REEFRA/IFESE
g R

Maximum amount
outstanding during the

As at 31 March year ended 31 March
HE=A=t+—-RILFE
R=R=+—8H REEBRSTH
Name 2019 2018 2019 2018
wE LB =EB-hEFE —T-N\F =ZB-hEF —TN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx i I FHERT FHET
Link Bright Consultants Limited #BAEERS AR A7)
(“Link Bright”) (Note) (#8A 1) (FF3E) - = - 2
Mr. Tang Yiu Chi, James HRRES St A - 55 78 55

Note: Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James, being the sole director and sole
shareholder of Link Bright, is also a director of the Company.

Amount due to a director and amounts due to
related companies

These amounts are non-trade nature, interest-free, unsecured
and are repayable on demand.

Loan from a director

The amount of HK$40,000,000 is unsecured, bearing an
interest of 2% per annum and will be matured on 11 May 2019
without repayable on demand clause.

The amount of HK$30,000,000 is unsecured, bearing an

interest of 2% per annum and will be matured on 14 May 2020
without repayable on demand clause.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

29. BORROWINGS 29. BE
Bank borrowings BITEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Secured and guaranteed interest-bearing BHEWLAERRGTBRITER
bank loans:
Repayable on demand or within one year BRERFN —FRNER 29,389 14,094
Repayable after one year which contain a R—FEREER  HEREK
repayable on demand clause BRI 31,813 42,497
Total bank borrowings LIRITIEE 61,202 56,591
Analysis based on scheduled repayment RARE RIp R PR E & K
terms set out in the loan agreements, into: BRRZ 24T -
On demand or within one year BRERKIN—FA 29,389 14,094
More than one year, but not exceeding HR i — F 1B ABIB R E
two years 9,854 10,718
More than two years, but not exceeding FREB R F 1B R E R F
five years 18,170 28,009
More than five years BBEAF 3,789 3,770
Total bank borrowings LAIRITIEE 61,202 56,591
Bank borrowings bear interest at floating interest rates. The RITEERFINERAL - REREHR - &
effective interest rates of borrowings as at the end of each of B ERHMRIREENTF279%E613% (=
the reporting period ranged from 2.79% to 6.13% per annum — )\ : BF3.50% £ 4.88%) 5T & °

(2018: 3.50% to 4.88% per annum).
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

29. BORROWINGS (continued) 29. BE (&)

Bank borrowings (continued)

The bank borrowings and other banking facilities are secured

and guaranteed by:

(@) Pledge of leasehold land and buildings (Note 14) held
by the Group as at 31 March 2019 and 2018;

(b) Pledge of bank deposits amounting to HK$4,654,000
and HK$4,627,000 (Note 24) held by the Group as at 31
March 2019 and 2018, respectively; and

(0 At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Company has issued
guarantees to banks to secure banking facilities granted

to certain subsidiaries.
Other borrowings

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles
and machinery under financing arrangement. The Group
entered into financing arrangement with several financial
institutions, pursuant to which, the Group transferred the
legal title of certain machinery of the Group to these financial
institutions at net consideration of HK$28,460,000 (2018:
HK$87,817,000). The Group is obligated to pay monthly
instalments in accordance with respective agreements. Upon
the maturity of the lease, the Group is entitled to purchase
back the machinery at cash considerations in accordance with
respective agreements which are expected lower than the
market values of respective machinery. Despite the fact that
arrangement involves a legal form of a lease, the Group
accounted for the arrangement as a collateralised borrowing
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, in

accordance with the substance of the arrangement.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KB 2RI EE@MAR AT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

29. BORROWINGS (continued) 29.
Other borrowings (continued)

The lease terms range from 3 to 5 years (2018: 3 to 5 years)
under sale and leaseback arrangement. Interest rates
underlying all arrangements are either fixed ranging from
2.88% to 4.97% per annum (2018: 7.14% to 11.97% per annum)
or variable ranging from 3.54% to 5.15% per annum (2018:
5.49% to 9.82% per annum) at respective contract dates.

None of the leases include contingent rentals.

BE (&)
HittfE& ()

BIREEREZRBMEZEE - BN TIEF(=
T—)\F :385F) - FTALTBEZHBFRET)
RESHABZEEFHE288%ZE4.97% (=
T—N\F: FFER714%E11.97%) FFEF
=3 54%%5.15%(—F—)\4F : F£F|=549%
£9.82%)5t B - ZEHEMERFERAAS -

Present value of
minimum lease payments

BEHEANRZERE
2019 2018
—E-hF —FN\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Principal amount: PN
Within one year —FER 56,915 56,675
Within a period of more than one year RE—F A LB BBARE
but not more than two years 26,457 29,135
Within a period of more than two years REMFEA LB BB D F
but not more than five years 11,224 22,870
94,596 108,680
Less: Amount due for settlement within B T EAREIEMER 2 5RIE
twelve months (shown under current (BIRTREBEET)
liabilities) (56,915) (56,675)
Amount due for settlement after twelve +-EAREHER 2 FIAE
months 37,681 52,005

Other borrowings are effectively secured by the underlying
assets of HK$125,981,000 (2018: HK$139,710,000) as the rights
to the leased assets would be reverted to the lessor in the
event of default by repayment by the Group.

Included in the Group's borrowings are borrowings, with
carrying amount of HK$62,900,000 (2018: HK$79,787,000)

which contain a repayment on demand clause.

HAb S EERRIA125,981,00087T( =T —/\4F :
139,710,000/ 7T ) Z BB E(EHEA - RER
WAEBEERER  HELSERBREERET
HFEA ©

AEEZ EERERMEEA 62,900,000 T(=

Z— )\ : 79,787,000 ) M # /AL sk (EE
ERZEE -

Annual Report F 3k 2018/19 187



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBFE &R ELEEBR AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

30. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES 30. MEHESE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ET—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BREEMANA :
Current liabilities mEEE 4,153 4,340
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 5,704 8,341
9,857 12,681
It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles AEEYREAREREHERSEEFASE
and machineries under finance leases. The lease terms range TR o FHEAN T 3B 54 (—FE— )\ : 355
from 3 to 5 years (2018: 3 to 5 years). Interest rates underlying E) o FIERMEAESET BBANEIIRSS
all obligation under finance leases are fixed ranging from 2B BT E R K 1.40% F4.14% (= F— )\
1.40% to 4.14% per annum (2018: 6.00% to 11.27% per annum) G EFK600%ZE 11.27%) 58 « ZERE
at respective contract dates. None of the leases include Pm T RS o

contingent rentals.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

30. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES 30. MEHESEE(E)
(continued)

Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
REAEAH BREHENRZRE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZN\F —E-hF —Z-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TER FHET
Obligation under finance leases BEBEEEENTIE
payable:
Within one year —&ER 4,478 4,776 4,153 4,340
Within a period of more than one ~ &HA—4EA B
year but not more than two years ~ NRBHF 3,647 3,846 3,485 3,589
Within a period of more thantwo ~ AHIRFIA B
years but not more than five TERBRTF
years 2,260 4,906 2,219 4,752
10,385 13,528 9,857 12,681
Less: future finance charges B ARBEER (528) (847) N/ARiE N/A i A
Present value of lease obligations ~ FAEEEZBE 9,857 12,681 9,857 12,681
Less: Amounts due for settlement  J : + (A A NEIHEE
within twelve months (shown ZHEGIRRE
under current liabilities) BEET) (4,153) (4,340)
Amounts due for settlement after ~ +—{E A& | HAE& 2 78
twelve months 5,704 8,341
Finance lease payables are effectively secured by the BMEHERNFIBER FLARREEERR -
underlying assets as the rights to the leased assets would be REZMAEEERER  HEEEREBEAS
reverted to the lessor in the event of default of repayment by R THAEA -

the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

31. DEFERRED TAX 31. ELEBIE
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets NTARESERENRBTFERRACEEER
recognised by the Group and the movement thereon, during IR (BE)EENHES) -

the current and prior years.

Fair value
adjustments
arising from  Accelerated
acquisition of tax
subsidiaries  depreciation Tax losses Total
WeEE B A B
EEZ
AFESE MEBENE BESR i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET FET
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—tFMA—H = (30,781) 6,364 (24,417)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss ($0B%) st AB = = 2,683 (1,586) 1,097
At 31 March 2018 RZE-\E=RA=+—H = (28,098) 4,778 (23,320)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss BUNEICIE 100 (4,404) 5,285 981
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1 =N (1,984) = - (1,984)
At 31 March 2019 R=B-NE=A=t+-H (1,884) (32,502) 10,063 (24,323)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax RIPEBHKR REB RS HKEEIE
losses of HK$60,988,000 (2018: HK$28,958,000) available for 60,988,00078 7T ( —ZF— )\ £ : 28,958,000/ 7T)
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been AR A EF - Bt A B EERELE
recognised in respect of such losses. The management of the BIBEE -ANEFTEELRELKEB TS
Group assessed the future cash flows of the subsidiaries of EHAAREERB AR AKBLRE AR
the Group with reference to the machinery hire agreements TEED A EERGEH ST BEKENTTE
and in the opinion of the directors of the Company, taxable BRKAIEE Y RS ERIEES o
profit will be probably available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilised in the foreseeable future.
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for AT &G FERE B MRS 2 EER ELE
financial reporting purposes: BADHT
2019 2018
—e-rF —T-N&
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Deferred tax assets EEFRIEE E 3,913 4,743
Deferred tax liabilities RLEBHEBE (28,236) (28,063)
(24,323) (23,320)
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 32. EEHELEEBZHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Non-cash changes

FREEY
Purchase
As at Finance  of property, As at
1 April Financing cost plant and Share issue 31 March
2018 cash flows recognised equipment costs 2019
R=B-N\& Mg BEZ BENX. R=Z-n%
mA-A BeRE MERE  BERRE ROBRORE =ZA=t+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TiER T
(Note)
(Bf=E)

Borrowings B8 165,271 (33,760) 6,148 18,139 - 15,798
Obligation under finance leases ~ REAMEE(T 12,681 (4,553) 317 1412 = 9,857

Amount due to an intermediate JER — R R A R
holding company B = 4,290 = = = 4,290
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  JEf [ Z B2 B 78 260 4,774 = = = 5,034
Amount due to a director EN—ZEE70E = 7434 = = = 7434
Loan from a director RE—ZEZZER 40,000 30,000 = = = 70,000
Accrual-interest payable FEfS PES RIS 734 = 1,350 = = 2,084
Accrual cost of right issue AR 34T 2 JERTRA R = (1,019 - = 1,019 =
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 32. MEEHELAEZHR(E)
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

Non-cash changes

FREEH
Purchase

As at Finance  of property, As at

1 April Financing cost plant and Share issue 31 March

2017 cash flows recognised equipment costs 2018

RZZ—tF BE ERR BENE RZZ-N\F

mA-H BEenE BERE BERRE ROBGTREA ZA=+-H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT TR TEL FET FHT

(Note)
(PzE)

Borrowings BE 152,231 6,470 6,570 - - 165,271

Obligation under finance leases ~ REMEE(E 6,892 (5,734) 326 11,197 = 12,681

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEfT R ZHTB 2 AlFUA - 260 - - = 260

Amount due to a director ER—ZEFHE 310 (310) = 3 = =

Loan from a director RE—ZES/ER = 40,000 = = = 40,000

Accrual-interest payable R ERTF & - - 734 - Ik 734

Accrual cost of share placingand R B & RAMRE T

bonus issue ZIERHRA - (3,077) = =t 3,077 &
Note: The cash flows represent the proceeds from new borrowings Mizk: MEREEFTEE  BEQ TRRE—RE
advance from related companies, and loan from a director, EZERZFABERA @ﬁﬁ“ MEREER

repayment of borrowings, obligation under finance leases, amount £ BN —BEFRBERFSHRK -

due to a director and payment of interest.
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. B
Number
of shares Amount
R EHE &8
Thousand
shares HK$'000
Tz FH&T
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEO0.01 BTz EiRAR
At 1 April 2017 R-ZZFE—tFWMA—H 1,560,000 15,600
Increase in authorised share capital RZZFE—+tFN\HA=1H
on 30 August 2017 (Note (a)) EIMEERA (5T (a) 18,440,000 184,400
At 31 March 2018, 1 April 2018 R-E—NE=A=+—8 "
and 31 March 2019 —E-\FHA-HE
—E-h&F=A=+—H 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRERE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each J&LEEO 0178702 Ei8@A
At 1 April 2017 RZFE—tFHA— E 1,000,000 10,000
Issue of shares by placing (Note (b)) FBEEEITIRG (HEE (b)) 200,000 2,000
Issue of shares by bonus issue (Note (c)) BB R T AR TR
(B3 () 1,200,000 12,000
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 R-ZZE-—N\F=A=+—H
kR—F-\FMA—H 2,400,000 24,000
Issue of shares by right issue RZZE-—NFAZTHBEER
on 25 June 2018 (Note (d)) AR B TT AR 1 (MY EE(d)) 1,200,000 12,000
Issue of shares on 17 December 2018 RZZE-—N\F+ZHA++tH
(Note (e)) TR (FI5E (e) 550,000 5,500
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE-NF=A=+—H 4,150,000 41,500
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note:

(a)

On 30 August 2017, the shareholders resolved to increase the
authorised share capital of the Company from HK$15,600,000 to
HK$200,000,000 by the creation of an additional 18,440,000,000
shares of the Company.

On 26 May 2017, 200,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were issued at a price of HK$0.62 per share for a total cash
consideration (before share issuance expenses) of HK$124,000,000
by way of placing to independent third party investors.
HK$2,630,000 professional fee was incurred as direct attribute cost.

On 4 July 2017, the directors of the Company proposed a bonus
issue on the basis of one bonus share for every one share held. The
bonus issue was approved by the shareholders on 30 August 2017
and 1,200,000,000 bonus shares were issued on 11 September
2017.

On 25 June 2018, the Company proposed a 1-for-2 rights issue.
The rights issue was completed on 2 August 2018 and 1,200,000,000
shares were issued for a total cash consideration (before expenses)
of HK$180,000,000. HK$899,000 professional fee was incurred as
direct attribute cost.

On 17 December 2018, the Company proposed to issue
550,000,000 shares for the settlement of the acquisition of 4.05%
interests in China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited.
The issuance of shares was completed on 15 February 2019 and
550,000,000 shares were issued.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Shareholders of the Company have approved and adopted a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 23 October 2015.

A summary of the Scheme is set out as below:

The Scheme became effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 23 October 2015. Under the Scheme, the
directors of the Company shall, in its absolute discretion
select, make an offer to any eligible participants to subscribe
for shares of the Company at a subscription price being not
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the offer date; or (i) the average closing prices of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date; or (iii) the nominal value of the share
on the offer date. The offer of a grant of options may be

accepted within seven days from the date of the offer grant.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted at any time under
the Scheme together with options which may be granted
under any other share option schemes for the time being of
the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date of the

approval of the Scheme.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the

Scheme.

34.

RHB RS

AATRENR-E—RE+A-+F=A#tET
RN 8 ([%atEl) -

ZaT 8B T

ZEtEEZE-RAF A T=RRER R
Hi+F - IREZT 8 ARRESAI2ENIE
BHAMNAER2BETREELREAQR]
BHOMEL  REETMERTIESSE : ()&
ARAIRMD R EL B AR R AT B REXRFTR
BT B ;3 (i) AR AR R BB E L B BT
Tl ¥ AR R TS B RERATIRFHUK
ME: (i\RORENBHNEE - HLE
Mt 2 ZH AT ELR T B BR £ A AR -

ARBZET S PMER B R R B MARITEN2E
BROEERRIEAR RS REMEMERER
BRI BE R I BB AR BT TR M AS T B ATRORD
2HER AR FHEENIEZEERAR
REEEITAA 10%

B Rzt BIAR - BEER  E A -
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35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT
The Group as lessor

The Group sub-leased vacant space of its leased warehouse
and leased and sub-leased its owned and leased machinery
under operating lease agreements. Income earned from the
leasing during the year is HK$97,541,000 (2018:
HK$106,196,000). Leases are negotiated on a monthly basis.

The minimum rent receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

35. WEHERH

AEBMBHBEA

AREREBLEMEHREEAEERAENE
B I%EE&MHEQE‘MEEW& ° B
AEE - HEMTRARI7,541,00087T(=F
R 106,1%,000/%75) - MERE AT
1% o

RE A RUHAR & H E R RIEHE € EIRIA N
e

2019 2018

ZE-NF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHBT

Not later than one year TER—F 1,616 1,912

The Group as lessee AEERABEA

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had MNEREIR - REERBEAAIHELEHE
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- AT BRI B B 2 R SR &R R A & 1 R HE 1

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

—/|

2019 2018

—E-NEF —ET—)\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FATT

Within one year )7\\ FR 924 2,568
In the second to fifth year inclusive LF (BIEEREMF) 36 1,134
960 3,702

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for office, warehouse property and certain of its
machineries. Leases are negotiated for a period of one to
three years (2018: one to two years) and rentals are fixed at

the time of entering the respective leases.
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36.

37.

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EXRAE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET
Capital expenditure in respect of addition  HEEBWE - FEREEH
of property, plant and equipment BAREIL
— contracted for but not provided in the — BENERGEE B BSRED
consolidated financial statements Mok B A 19,253 =

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the
rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions. Except
for voluntary contribution, no forfeited contribution under the
MPF Scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable
in future years. The cap of contribution amount is HK$1,500
per employee per month.

The retirement benefits schemes contributions arising from
the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income represent
contributions paid or payable to the funds by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The contributions paid and payable to the MPF Schemes by
the Group are disclosed in notes 9 and 11.

37.

BRAKBERTE

miEE At D RERHERABEBIRAIER
HEATELERRERL - BEETEZEES
YRAKE 2 EE  HBEYIEAZEGZES
R - RBERESHE BEEMEBHARE
ERARTAZ e R AR5t Bl - AR E
BRsESECEEEERFLEEZH#
Ko RIREEEEE - By BRBREIN - BRRE
HERT A I EL UM B EHIRE 4
R REBREESAFLHNEREBELRA
1,500 7T °

FeEE 3 IEL 2 RIKEFIF IR E &
AHEmEMEEKSERTHG  HEREAE
BT ERAGTRZ L ZENHENE S Z #

e
N

REBE N REMEBESTE 2 HARHES
Rt FE 1 B -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. EXEpBERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements except for certain subsidiaries engaged in
securities and futures dealings and broking, which are
regulated by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC").

During the year, the subsidiaries of the Group which are
subject to minimum capital requirements imposed by
respective regulatory authorities, complied with all the

minimum capital requirements.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
include the borrowings, loan from a director, obligation under
finance leases and equity attributable to owners of the

Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

The management reviews the capital structure by considering
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. In view of this, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through new share issues as well as the issue
of new debt or the redemption of existing debt. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39. @M IR

Categories of financial instruments THMIARCZESR
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Financial assets at amortised costs: REBHEASIREZERMEE :
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H A EWFRIE 85,164 -
Finance lease receivables B & S I GRIE 14,005 -
Loan receivables FEWE K 163,305 =
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEU R BT/ A R kIR 11,283 =
Pledged bank deposits EHEHRITER 4,654 =
Bank balances, trust and RITEER - EERBELEP
segregated accounts 7,266 =
Bank balances and cash RITARESBRIRE® 129,543 -
Financial assets at fair value through AR ETEEES LT ABR
profit or loss: ZERMEE:
Listed equity instrument FH#EETA 114,376 -
Loans and receivables: BERRERRIE :
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H b EUGRIE = 184,370
Finance lease receivables Bl &S IR - 16,488
Amount due from a director Y —REEHIE = 55
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITER = 4,627
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS - 119,709
529,596 325,249
Financial liabilities at amortised costs: REBEANIREz2EHEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REHA BRI 31,622 35,019
Amount due to a director BN —REEHIE 7,434 =
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries i ANIGE DI EPNGIE S 5,034 260
Amount due to an intermediate FEASF — Al R R AR A A5k 38
holding company 4,290 -
Borrowings gg 155,798 165,271
Obligations under finance leases BEHERF 9,857 12,681
Loan from a director RKE—ZBEFZER 70,000 40,000
284,035 253,231
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. eI A (%)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include finance lease
receivables, trade receivables, other receivables and deposits,
loan receivable, amounts due from related companies and a
director, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
financial asset at fair value through profit and loss, trade
payables, accruals, deposits received and other payables,
amounts due to a director and related companies,
borrowings, obligation under finance leases and loan from a
director. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
Currency risk

Certain transactions of the Group are denominated in
currencies which are different from the functional currencies
of the group entities and therefore the Group is exposed to
foreign currency risk. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
of the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure if

necessary.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

9% and 8% increase and decrease in HK$ against the JPY,
EURO and USD (2018: 8%, 9% and 8%) respectively. 8%, 9%
and 8% are the sensitivity rates used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and
represents management's assessment of the possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for 8%, 9% and 8% change in foreign currency rates. A
positive/negative number below indicates an decrease/
increase in post-tax loss (2018: increase/decrease in post-tax
loss) where the relevant currencies strengthen 8%, 9% and 8%
against HK$. For 8%, 9% and 8% weakening of the relevant
currencies against HK$, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax loss (2018: post-tax loss).

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. @@TA(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies cRIEAREEEERBX(E)
(continued)
Currency risk (continued) E¥E R (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency REEBR - REEUINETENEEEE R
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the EREENREEBENAT
end of reporting period are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
&E =L
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NE —E-N\F ZEB-RE —Z-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER FET
Japanese Yen (“JPY") RE(HE]) 9,569 5,203 (9,280) (1,606)
Euro Dollars ("EURO") EomMEH)) 5,543 11,133 (145) =
Macau Pataca P 353 - - -
Renminbi AR 118 - - -
United States Dollars (“USD") ESA(EZA) 19,064 1,368 (525) S
Sensitivity analysis HIFEE T
The following table details the sensitivity of the Group to 8%, TRAMNHINAEEETE AE - BUTRET

FEREESY 9% & 8% (=T —/\F : 8% -
9% K. 8%) HY GRS © 8% ~ 9% K 8% 2 [ £ B
EIB A B N E5IE R INE R B B 5 A R SUKE
X RREEEHAREENEXZEHHT
iy e REDMEBREREBEUINESTENE
MIEE - WAETRE BARTRIE K12 8% » 9% & 8%
MEXRSHELFALE - TRIE/BHERTES
RS B T FHE 8% - 9% N 8% B B T 14 s
BRD /BN ZE—N\F: REEEEE
M/ B zemE - HEBEEHLETRE
8% 9% K 8%iME * AR HRBEER(ZE
—N\F: REBRER EERASREEVE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. €I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

TREREEREERBE(B)

EHempg (i)

R T ()

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FH&TT

JPY against HK$ RERLETT 19 240
EURO against HK$ BT RS TT 406 837
USD against HK$ EILRABTT 1,238 91

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the currency risk as the
exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect

the exposure during the year.
Interest rate risk

As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate borrowings,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of the banks’ respective HK$ Best Lending Rate

from the Group's borrowings denominated in HK$.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate loan from a director,
fixed-rate borrowings and obligation under finance leases
(2018: Fixed-rate loan from a director, fixed-rate borrowings

and obligation under finance leases).

The Group has not entered into any interest rate hedging
contracts or any other interest rate related derivative financial
instruments. However, management monitors the Group's
related interest rate exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure when the need

arises.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to the variable-rate pledged bank deposits,
bank balances, borrowings at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. 100 basis points (2018: 100
basis points) increase or decrease is used on variable-rate
borrowings after considering the impact of volatile financial
market conditions. The directors of the Company used 50
basis points (2018: 50 basis points) for assessing interest rate
risk on bank balances because they considered that the
fluctuations on interest rate on bank balances would be less

significant.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2018: 100 basis
points) higher/lower for variable-rate borrowings and
obligations under finance leases and 50 basis points (2018: 50
basis points) higher/lower for balances and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's pre-tax loss for the year
ended 31 March 2019 would have increased/decreased by
HK$704,000 (2018: pre-tax profit decreased/increased
HK$767,000).

The basis points change represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the interest rate risk as the
exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect

the exposure during the year.

39. 2T AE(E)

TREREEREERBE(B)

FIEmp (&)

g

BREE T

G

N THBEDMHBBERBERREZ 2R
EEMRITHER  RITHER  BEERRETE -
DMTIBERNBERREAREEZEBMTAR
B 6 2 e R B T B SE - 8 N sRORt 2> 100 (@
EE(ZZF—)\F : 100EEEF) DR E R &l
MRKBZZBEANERER - ARRESR
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. €I A (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2019, other than those finance assets whose
carrying amounts best represent the maximum exposure to
credit risk, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group arising from the
amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantees provided by the Group is disclosed in note 42.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

The Group trades only with recognised and credit-worthy
customers with no requirement for collateral. It is the Group'’s
policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action are
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the directors of
the Company review the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and bills receivable at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the credit risk of the
Group is significantly reduced.

(i)  Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group's
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status
is not further distinguished between the Group's
different customer bases.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables as at 31 March 2019:

39. €mMITA(E)

TREREEREERBE(E)

EEmE (&)
() EBEZEUTEGE)
TREHARASER _FT—NF=H

=t HFEHZEERRNE S EW
RAZEREEERER

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BEHERE IREARE BEEE
(%) (HK$'000) (HK$'000)

(F#&7T) (F&7T)

Current ENER 5.8 9,249 537
1-30 days past due BH1Z30H 120 11,727 1,405
31-90 days past due w31 E90H 26.1 4,877 1,275
91-180 days past due BEA91E 180 379 2,425 918
More than 180 days past due BEA180H A £ 46.6 18,307 8,539

46,585 12,674

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are

banks with good reputation.

At 31 March 2019, the Group provided corporate
guarantees amounting to HK$Nil (2018: HK$333,000) to
a bank in respect of obligations under finance leases of

certain third party customers.

Under the financial guarantees, the Group would be
liable to pay the bank if the bank is unable to recover
the amounts under these finance leases. At 31 March
2019, no provision for the Group's obligation under the
guarantee contracts has been made as the directors of
the Company considered that it was not probable that
the repayment of the finance leases obligation would
be in default.

BERBTERRATESBZ EEAR
AR RESHFFAAARIFEEY
7T o

R-EBE-AE=A=+—H "EEF
RETE=ARFZzREMAERFR—
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. eI A (%)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the operations of
the Group and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of borrowings

and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Company is regulated
by SFC and is subject to certain requirements under the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules and
accordingly, the Group has to monitor the liquidity of this
subsidiary to ensure compliance with the relevant rules. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the

short and longer term.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings
with a repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from

forward interest rates at the end of the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

39. ¢TI HE(E)

EREREERERBEGE)

Liquidity risk (continued) BB (E)
Weighted More than ~ More than Total
average  Within one one year two years contractual
effective ~ yearoron butlessthan butlessthan ~ More than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand two years five years five years cash flow amount
MEF —EUR —EN0E MERL BRRHR
BBRR= FRER  EREMAR BRFEHR LENE RERELE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThAL Thx TAR AR TARL TAL
At 31 March 2019 R=E-hE=A=t-A
Trade payables B S EE N/ARERA 14,009 - - - 14,009 14,009
Accruals, deposits receivedand ~ [ERTER « EEE R
other payables Hity R FUA N/ATER 17,613 - - - 17,613 17,613
Amounts due to related parties  EfBZE N AIZUE N/ATER 16,758 - - - 16,758 16,758
Loan from a director RE-EEEZE87 2.00 41,600 31,200 - - 72,800 70,000
Borrowings (-] 4.09 91,010 38,277 30,911 3,841 164,039 155,798
Obligation under finance leases  BEHEEF 3.47 4,478 3,647 2,260 = 10,385 9,857
185,468 73,124 3317 3,841 295,604 284,035
Financial guarantees issued fEl 2 BT R
Maximum amount guaranteed ~ ERZZALHE N/ATER 10,170 = = = 10,170 =
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z —F— A F=A=+—HBI-FE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRU

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

MENTS (continued)

39. 2T AE(E)

TREREEREERBE(E)

Liquidity risk (continued) mEBELEE (E)
Weighted Morethan ~ More than Total
average Within one one year twoyears  contractual
effective yearoron butlessthan  butlessthan undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand two years five years cash flow amount
ET —ELR —EN)E MENE  RHRER
BRA= FREX  ERENA  BRENR RERELE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
At 31 March 2018 R=E-N\$=A=1-H
Trade payables TN N/ARNE A 21,980 = = 21,980 21,980
Accruals, deposits receivedand ~ [E:HER - BMIRE R
other payables EifETE N/ANER 13,039 = = 13,039 13,039
Amounts due to related parties B EERAFUE N/ARER 260 - - 260 260
Loan from a director RE—ZEE/ER 2.00 - 41,600 - 41,600 40,000
Borrowings (- 6.54 123,236 30,636 23,304 177,176 165,271
Obligation under finance leases ~ BERER(E 870 4776 3,846 4,906 13,528 12,681
163,291 76,082 28,210 267,583 253,231
Financial guarantees issued fElt 2 BB R
Maximum amount quaranteed ~ ERZZALE N/ANE A 11,533 = = 11,533 =
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. eI A(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies cRIEAREEEERBX(E)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) mEBELEE (E)
Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included RERERERGFNEEFALBZHE S
in the “on demand” time band in the above maturity analysis. Mz RER | BHEE - R—_ZT—NER-
As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the aggregate undiscounted T-NF=ZA=1—0  ZZEERREBAR
principal amounts of these borrowings amounted to © #58 5 BI 49 & 62,900,000 7 7T K 79,787,000
approximately HK$62,900,000 and HK$79,787,000 BT o KA RAKBHM B - RARIEENR
respectively. Taking into account the Group’s financial EEATRAIREEITHEBNIEREAERKAIRE
position, the directors of the Company do not believe that it Ko RRBEEFRE - BEBEFRERERMHE
is probable that the lenders will exercise their discretionary PRETEENE 71 A Hi(E& - MR TR BN E AR
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors of the RS RFSRSMEEHINOT
Company believe that such loans will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements and the principal and interest cash outflows
according to the scheduled repayment dates are set out as
follows:
Weighted More than  More than Total
average Within one one year but two year but contractual
effective year or on less than lessthan ~ More than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand  twoyears  fiveyears  fiveyears  cashflow amount
mERE  -FHRE —FHE MERE BRRER
ERNE RERX EmENR BRENR  BENE REREER REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TAR TAR TAR TAn Thn
Borrowings =&
At 31 March 2019 R-B-h%E
=B=t-H 5.04 21,916 17,843 24,255 3,841 67,855 62,900
At 31 March 2018 RIZ-N\EF
= s 5.06 23,022 20,661 3,753 9,566 87,002 79,187
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

(i)  Fair value of the Group'’s financial instruments that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial instruments are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial instruments are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

39. &@

TRE&E)

ETRMTAZAFENE

A RS ARENABT 2 EOBAEAT
EOER -

(i)

HUBEMBEERNFHEHIAEBZFEEE
BTREZAFE

AEBEETeRIARSREARER
FEFE - TREHRABNMNEEZS
TRTEZ A VEEHRMAERNMGE
BT LB ABIE) 2B -

Valuation techniques

Financial assets Fair value as at 31 March  Fair value hierarchy  and key inputs
THMEE R=ZA=+—HBZ2¥E -AFERS RERN R 20 ARE
2019 2018
—E-AFE ZZT-N\F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHET THTT
Listed equity instruments 114,376 - Level1 Quoted prices in an
FHERTA 1 active market

REREMS 2 HE

Of the total gains and losses for the year included in
profit or loss, net gain of HK$17,927,000 (2018: HK$Nil)
relates to financial assets designated as at FVTPL and
financial liabilities at FVTPL held at the end of the
current year. Fair value gains or losses on financial
assets designated as at FVTPL and financial liabilities at
FVTPL are included in ‘other gains and losses'.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The board
of directors of the Company has set up an investment
committee, which is headed up by the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(continued)

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent they
are available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The investment committee works closely
with the qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The Chief Financial Officer reports the
investment committee’s findings to the board of
directors of the Company every half year to explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and

liabilities.
Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value

measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial

instruments:

39. 2T AE(E)

EMIAZAFEFEGE)

(i)

UBEMBERAFHEHIMTEZFAEBE
TRz FEE)

REFTEERABZATER  A%H
ERAES TSR BEEUR - fWE—
RBABETAR  AREREFE=
TRERGEMETHE - REZRS®
HAEERIMNSEEMBERSEUGTIER
B EERMEBABBERN - 25 H
BERBEAFERBDZREA EFEY
BEBLFRARARAREZTERERER
BgsREER -

RFERS

TREEANEESR T A AFEFE
AR

As at 31 March 2019

R=-ZE-hE=A=+—8H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E—& -t 11 E=H st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FHET F& T

Listed equity instruments  EifEzE T A 114,376 = — 114,376
114,376 114,376
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39.

40.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

(ii)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair value
of its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at

amortised cost using the discounted cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their fair

values.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group entered
into finance lease arrangements in respect of purchase of
property, plant and equipment with a capital value at the
inception of the leases of approximately HK$19,551,000 (2018:
HK$11,197,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement in respect of purchase of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$252,450,000 settled by issuance of
550,000,000 shares.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement in respect of the
acquisition of a joint venture of approximately
HK$156,000,000 settled by 588,680,000 shares of China
Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited.
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39.

40.

SRMIAE)

EMIAZAFEFEE)

(i) WHUEEMEEZNFETBHETE
BEHEERLHBEEN A FE

AEEEREEERMBRRSRENTMGE
FHRBERAGENEREERESRE
B2 ATE -

AEBEEERE  HAMBKRRERS
IR ER AR BN REER SR A
ERREERE QNP ERE -

FEFRERS

BE_ZT-HhE=A=+—HILEE K&£E
MEEME  BERJBILHEHELH -
PR & R iR R ) B AR BB 4972 19,551,000 74 7T
(ZZ—/)\£F : 11,197,000 T) °

e =2 = H = HIREE AN E
I E AH X 252,450,000 8 T AR FEFER
HB A B eMEEVEERZ I
LAZ%97 550,000,000 B AR 2 75 41T ©

BE_ZT-hE=PF=1+—HLEE £x&£E
UK EE A 814 156,000,000 8 TC 2 & B EET S
B & sk 0 1A 588,680,000 i Bl LR & & &
REEERARRMDEN -
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41.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41. BBAERS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRERE M EHREREGIHBOEREIN - NEEH
statements, during the year the Group had the following RERNEBBTTETATRS

transactions with related parties.

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT
Profit Principle Limited (“Profit Principle”)  SlEtAR A7 ([ ) (KizE)
(Note):
Property rental expense MEMER X 48 48
Director’s loan interest expense EEERH R 1,350 734
Note: Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James, being a director and a shareholder of PHaE - SUBME FRRREBRE CENMBARFEE
Profit Principle, is also a director of the Company.
Compensation of key management personnel FTEEBEABNEM
The remuneration of directors and other members of key BHE-_ZT—NERZZE-—N\F=A=+—HIE
management during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 FE CEENHEMTEEREASEHNMOT
were as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EERREF 9,023 8,241
Retirement benefits scheme contributions  3RKEF5HE| 7% 124 130
9,147 &,
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42.

43.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group provided corporate
guarantees and performance guarantee amounting to
approximately HK$Nil (2018: HK$333,000) and HK$10,170,000
(2018 HK$11,200,000) to banks in respect of obligations under
finance leases and the Group's obligations under contracts
with certain third party customers. Under the guarantees, the
Group would be liable to make payments to the banks if the
bank is unable to recover the amounts under these finance
leases from these customers or the Group failed to perform
the relevant obligations to these customers. As at 31 March
2019 and 2018, no provision for the Group's obligations under
the guarantee contracts has been made as the directors of
the Company considered that it was not probable that the
repayment of the finance lease obligations would be in
default and it was not probable that a claim will be made

against the Group.
BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 13 December 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the
voting equity instruments of Hao Tian International Financial
Holdings Limited (“HTIFH BVI”), a company whose principal
activity is investment holding. The subsidiaries of HTIFH BVI
("HTIFH Group”) are primarily engaged in dealing and
broking in securities, futures and option. The acquisition was
made with the aims to expand the Group's existing scale of

operation and enlarge the Group's market presence.
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42.

43.

HREE

RZZE—hE=A=1+—0 AEEHHER
EEERAEEREETE=78FI2Z2E
WIET 2 BEEMBTREQRAERRBELNER
DRENZTET(ZF—/)\F : 3330004 7T)
10,170,000 7£ ( == — J\ £ : 11,200,000 %
T) o MIBZSER  MZBITAEEZER
P Bz Em AT E T #) Z0E sk it A8 5 E R gk
BITHEHZEREP 2 HBAEME  AEEARR
AENEBFIE - RZE—NFRZZF—N\F
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BREETTETAAGEEREORTAAEE
BEHEAEEBER CRE U AREAEER
BREHTHETELEE -

EBEH

RZE-N\F+-_A+=R AEEREEX
B BERAER QR ([ RRERSBIZER
BVI| R—HEEREREZEREBK 2AF)
EHEKREE EETA - REERE S RIERK
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

43. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

43. EBE/(E)

Note HK$'000
FitEE FH&T
Property, plant and equipment WEE - RS R ERAE 3,401
Intangible assets B EE 17,020
Trade and other receivables g 5 & H b k1A 48,746
Loan receivables FEUE K 10,140
Amounts due from an intermediate holding JEU — il R Rl AR A BRI RRIE
company 16,547
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries JRE UK [B] < Bff /&8 2 R FKIE 639
Bank balances, trust and segregated RITHEER - EE BN RF 14,046
Cash and cash equivalents HEREEEEY 63,956
Trade and other payables g 5 R HA RN FRIE (24,085)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries JE At [R] 2B /88 & B FRIE (14,843)
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIA S & (1,984)
133,583
The provisional fair value of consideration HERBZEEATE:
transfer:
Cash " 180,000
Goodwill (Note 16) EESCGEAD) (i) 46,417
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: Wl A 2 IR SRR ¢
Cash consideration RERE (180,000)
Cash and bank balances acquired FrUR IR & MR SRITAE B 63,956
(116,044)

Notes:

(i)

Goodwill of HK$46,417,000 arose on this acquisition, which is not
deductible for tax purposes, comprises the acquired workforce and
the expected synergies arising from the combination of the existing
operations of the Group.

Since the acquisition date, HTIFH Group has contributed
HK$1,703,000 and HK$6,996,000 to the Group's revenue and loss.
Had the acquisition occurred on 1 April 2018, the Group's revenue
and loss for the year would have been approximately
HK$18,008,000 and HK$12,574,000 respectively for the year ended
31 March 2019.

This pro forma information is for illustrative purpose and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and the results of operations of
the Group that actually would have been achieved had the
acquisition been completed on 1 April 2018, nor is it intended to
be a projection of future results.

GEX

(ii)

TR TR M BB E AR T AT A7 2 78 46,417,00078 7T
BEMKESE N RRPESHAEEEF XK
A4 2 R

BUREHHNUR 2RERSHIERERE 5 5
B 7R & B T 2R Wz K& &5 181,703,000 T &
6,996,000 7T ° iR EBR = —/\FWUA —Hi
T AEBERBE-_T-—NF=A=T—HILF
Bz Rl R EE RIS B4 A 18,008,000 7 7T
12,574,000 7T °

EREEBEPHERF ARG - RUBERR 4R

RZZF-NFHA-BZEX  AEEERMAFZ
Wi AT AR - I B RS R EER 2 TR ©
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44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 44. TENMBRAFE

RZZE—N\FER_ZE—tF=ZA=+—H ' &
NAZEEWBARGEBOT :

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31
March 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued share capital
held by the Company

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Issued and fully
paid share capital

Principal activities and

Name of subsidiary place of operations

R, VNG EE 2]
ol NCTECE Al ERTRBZRE BRITRAEE LS TEXBRBERE
2019 2018
ZB-NE ZTNF
Crawler Krane Business BVI usD100 100% 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited' RBABRES 100X REER - BE
Chim Kee Company Limited'" Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 99.9% 99.9%  Construction machinery rental
=RV -1 VNG BB 1,000,000 % 7T and trading and sales
of construction materials,
Hong Kong
BERMAEE RHEUK
HEREYH  BR
Chim Kee Machinery Hong Kong HK$1 99.9% 99.9%  Construction machinery rental
Co., Limited! BB 1787 and trading and sales
G EmAR AT of construction materials,
Hong Kong
BERMAEE RHEUK
HEREYH B8
Chim Kee Transportation Hong Kong HK$1,200,000 99.9% 99.9%  Provision of machinery
Company Limited' a8 1,200,000 7T transportation services,
HREHERAR Hong Kong
RN ERRY - B8
K B Machinery Co., Limited"  Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Construction machinery trading
BHLERARAR N 17T and sales of construction
materials, Hong Kong
BERWHE RHEREDR
50
Hao Tian International Futures Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% — Futures brokerage, business
Limited BB 10,000,000 % 7T HERRER
S XERBEARAT
Chim Kee Equipment Limited' Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Construction machinery rental,
HaREARAR! BB 187 Hong Kong
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Name of subsidiary

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
incorporation/
registration
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

Proportion of
nominal value of

Issued and fully
paid share capital

issued share capital
held by the Company

44. TEMBATFE(E)

Principal activities and
place of operations

AR, LN
WEAR AR a1 3t B ERTRBZRE BRTRAmEE L5 TEXEBRBE RN
2019 2018
“E-hE ZTNF
Hightion, Sociedade Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Construction Machinery rental,
Unipessoal Limitada' pod! SBPIH 25,000 7T Macau
95— AEBRAR' REBHEE R
KB Crane Limited' Hong Kong HK$1,000 100% 100% Construction machinery trading,
BLERERAR BB 1,000 7T Hong Kong
REHRMHE - BB
Solution Pro Investments British Virgin UsD100 100% 100%  Investment holding, Islands
Limited' HEABRRES 100ET Hong Kong
AR B
Glory Century Limited' Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100% Dormant, Hong Kong
FARRARF BB 10078 7T TEXY B
K B Leasing Limited' Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Leasing, Hong Kong
BLMBAERAR E 10,000/ 7T g &
Chim Kee Crane Company ~ Hong Kong HK$100 100% 100%  Investment of leasehold land,
Limited' B 10087C Hong Kong
SR ERERAR RERETH - BB
Hao Tian International Bullion  Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% - Commodities brokerage
Limited BB 10,000,000 7% 7T Bmii
EREREEARAA
Hao Tian International Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100% - Securities brokerage business
Securities Limited e 10,000,000 7T BERRER
ERBIRFESARAA
! Limited liability company ; R BER AR

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of

other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the

Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

ERIBARREERR/EIEFEARERAE
HEENARFIMNBEAR - RRABREERR
REHMMHBEAR ZHBEERATER TR
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

45, AR B 2B BEMRRR R IAE

2019 2018
—®-hEF —F-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZIHE 184,114 12,139
Amounts due from subsidiaries e DY NGB O - 46,410
Property, plant and equipment M - BE &R 112 157
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries WHENRBL R Z:® - 100,000
184,226 158,706
Current assets REEE
Prepayments TR 337 374
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUBT B A Bl 7kIE 406,731 12,619
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 20,679 65,156
427,747 78,149
Current liabilities REEE
Accruals e & A 852 1,004
Amounts due to subsidiaries A ENGIE R 8,110 57,786
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FE R RSB A B3R 228 228
Amount due to an intermediate holding FEA — A AR A RIRKIE
company 1 L
Amount due to a director (Note) N —RESEHE (W) 10,582 10,592
19,773 69,610
Net current assets RBEEFE 407,974 BIS8Y
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRTEE S 592,200 167,245
Equity e
Share capital [N 41,500 24,000
Reserves e 550,700 143,245
Total equity ERBE 592,200 167,245
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45. RAT 2B R KR EE(E)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Note: BtsE
The amount due from the Company to a director is offset with the amount AABEN—BEEFENRR—ZEEEN—HWE
due to a subsidiary by the same director. The net amount is presented on NEIFRIAIESE - ENGRE MBI R NS FIRFHE -
the consolidated statement of financial position as those amounts are RERZERALBGIRIHLTHPIRR - NREERFE
subject to an enforceable offsetting arrangement that the Group currently EERHIERAEEZ S SR BRI FEEEEEZ
has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and the intention to ERIE o
settle those amounts on a net basis.
Movement in the Company’s reserves FRAZFEEED
Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R4 & EXRE 25t EiE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET
At 1 April 2017 RZZ—tFMA—H 62,354 6,291 (25,409) 43,236
Issue of shares by placing FREEETRG
(net of direct attributable cost) (MG EEEGERA) 119,370 = = 119,370
Issue of bonus shares BATAMR (12,000) - - (12,000)
Loss for the year FAER = = (7,361) (7.361)
At 31 March 2018 R=—ZE—\F=A=+—H 169,724 6,291 (32,770) 143,245
Issue of right shares BATHARAR D
(net of direct attributable cost) (MG EEEGERA) 166,981 = = 166,981
Issue of shares BT AR 198,000 48,950 - 246,950
Loss for the year FRERE - - (6,476) (6,476)
At 31 March 2019 R=B-NE=A=t+-H 534,705 55,241 (39,246) 550,700

46.

B B IS R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z T — A F=A=+—BI-FE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

46. REHHEREER

On 29 April 2019, the disposal of Chim Kee Crane Company
Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, was completed and it took place pursuant to the
terms of the sale and purchase agreement (the “SP
Agreement”). Chim Kee Crane Company Limited ceased to
be a subsidiary of the Company and the Company ceased to
have any interest in Chim Kee Crane Company Limited.

R-FE-NAEMA—t+IA HEXRFZME
E2EWBARGREERERLR(—HAR
EREMKZBRAR) ELTK  ZIEH
ENRBEER D (BB BR ) 2 GRET -
SLEERBERABATBERARRZHMEB LR
8 MARBNTBRHESCEERERAR
ZEftEe o
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MBHE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1T—-HLEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“E-AF —F-RF F—tF —_F-/\F —B-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TFET FET THET FET FET
RESULTS 3
Revenue Wzs 368,942 277,275 194,364 165,869 176,518
Profit (loss) before taxation B FiAla A (Ei8) 31,336 (11,983) 920 (15,925) (6,610)
Tax (charge) credit HE(ZH)ER (6,972) 738 613) 3,399 153
Profit (loss) for the year F R (EE) 24,364 (11,245) 307 (12,526) (6,457)
Attributable to: FELE -
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ =N 24,324 (11,240) 300 (12,528) (6,452)
Non-controlling interests FEPERSHE 40 (5 7 2 (5)
24,364 (11,245) 307 (12,526) (6,457)
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
ZE-HF ZT—RF ZT—+F ZT-N\F ZB-hIF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Total assets BEHAE 464,130 390,785 462,037 634,286 1,080,314
Total liabilities BEMRE (225,689) (146,944) (217,889) (281,294)  (313,553)
238,441 243,841 244,148 352,992 766,761
Equity attributable to owners 7N FI¥%EH A E(EHEZ
of the Company 238,193 243,598 243,898 352,740 766,514
Non-controlling interests B 248 243 250 252 247
238,441 243,841 244,148 352.992 766,761
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